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If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant
to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. [ ]

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a
delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of
1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest
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reinvestment plans, check the following box. [X]

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant
to Rule 462 (b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list
the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective
registration statement for the same offering. [ ]

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462 (c) under
the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act
registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement
for the same offering. [ ]

If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or
a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with
the Commission pursuant to Rule 462 (e) under the Securities Act, check the
following box. [ ]

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed
pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or
additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413 (b) under the Securities
Act, check the following box. [ ]

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

PROPOSED MAXIMUM PROPOSED MAXIMUM

TITLE OF EACH CLASS OF AMOUNT TO BE OFFERING PRICE PER AGGREGATE OFFERING
SECURITIES TO BE REGISTERED REGISTERED (1) SHARE (2) PRICE (2)

Common Stock, $0.01 par value 111,372,291 (3) S 0.97 S 108,031,122.03

1. Pursuant to Rule 416 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, this
Registration Statement shall also cover any additional shares of the
Registrant's Common Stock which become issuable by reason of any stock
dividend, stock split or similar transaction.

2. Estimated solely for the purpose of computing the registration fee
required by Section 6(b) of the Securities Act and computed pursuant to
Rule 457 under the Securities Act based upon the average of the high
and low prices of the Common Stock on August 22, 2006, as reported on
the Nasdag Capital Market.

3. Includes: (a) 60,975,610 shares sold by us in a private placement in
June 2006; (b) 4,273,504 shares sold by us pursuant to a rights
offering in January 2001; (c) 43,229,960 shares issued in June 2006
upon conversion of previously outstanding shares of Convertible
Preferred Stock; (d) 100,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of
warrants issued in March 2001 with an exercise price of $0.88 per
share; (e) 160,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants issued
in March 2002 with an exercise price of $1.68 per share; (f) 296,644
shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants issued in May 2002 with
an exercise price of $1.88 per share; (g) 1,186,573 shares sold by us
pursuant to a private placement in May 2002; (h) 25,000 shares issuable
upon the exercise of warrants issued in January 2003 with an exercise
price of $1.12 per share; (i) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise
of warrants issued in March 2003 with an exercise price of $0.78 per
share; (j) 1,000,000 shares issued in partial payment of the placement
agent fee incurred in connection with such private placement; and (k)
100,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of a warrant issued in
February 2006 with an exercise price of $1.00 per share.
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The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date
or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant
shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration
Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8 (a) of
the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become
effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8 (a),
may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed.
These securities may not be sold pursuant to this prospectus until the
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is
effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is
not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or
sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED AUGUST 24, 2006
PROSPECTUS
111,372,291 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
BLUEFLY, INC.

This prospectus relates to the resale, from time to time, of up to
111,372,291 shares of our common stock by the selling stockholders listed in
this prospectus under the section "Selling Stockholders."

The prices at which the selling stockholders may sell the shares will
be determined by the prevailing market price for the shares or in negotiated
transactions. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the
shares by the selling stockholders. However, as described in greater detail in
this prospectus under the section "Use of Proceeds," we may receive the proceeds
from the exercise of warrants issued to certain of the selling stockholders.

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdag Capital Market under the
symbol "BFLY," and on the Boston Stock Exchange under the symbol "BFL." On
August 22, 2006, the last sale price of our common stock was $0.96 per share.

THE SHARES OFFERED IN THIS PROSPECTUS INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK.
YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE RISK FACTORS COMMENCING ON PAGE 3 IN
DETERMINING WHETHER TO PURCHASE THE SHARES.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THESE SECURITIES OR PASSED UPON THE
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS IS , 2006
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We have not authorized any person to make a statement that differs from
what is in this prospectus. If any person does make a statement that differs
from what is in this prospectus, you should not rely on it. This prospectus is
not an offer to sell, nor is it seeking an offer to buy, these securities in any
state in which the offer or sale is not permitted. The information in this
prospectus is complete and accurate as of its date, but the information may
change after that date.

No dealer, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any
information or to make any representations other than those contained in or
incorporated by reference in this prospectus. If given or made, such information
or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by us or
the selling stockholders. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell,
or a solicitation of an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any
securities other than the securities covered by this prospectus, nor does it
constitute an offer to, or solicitation of, any person in any Jjurisdiction
where, or to any person to whom, it is unlawful to make such offer or
solicitation. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in our affairs since the date as of which information is given in
this prospectus.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary does not contain all of the information you should
consider before investing in our common stock. Prior to deciding to invest in
our common stock, you should read this entire prospectus carefully, including
the section entitled "Risk Factors" and other information incorporated herein by
reference. Unless otherwise specified, references in this prospectus to the
terms "Company," "Bluefly," "Registrant," "we," "us," and "our" in refer to
Bluefly, Inc. and its subsidiary.

THE COMPANY

We are a leading online retailer of designer brands, fashion trends and
superior value. During 2005, we offered over 37,000 different styles for sale in
categories such as men's, women's and accessories as well as house and home
accessories, from over 350 brands at discounts up to 75% off retail value. We
launched the Bluefly.com Web site in September 1998. Since its inception,
www.bluefly.com has served over 865,000 customers and shipped to over 17
countries.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdag Capital Market under the
symbol "BFLY" and on the Boston Stock Exchange under the symbol "BFL" and we are
incorporated in Delaware. Our executive offices are located at 42 West 39th
Street, New York, New York 10018, and our telephone number is (212) 944-8000.
Our Internet address is www.bluefly.com. We make available, free of charge,
through our Web site, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), as soon as reasonably practicable after
we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

In June 2006, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase

Agreement") with affiliates of Soros Fund Management LLC, ("Soros"), private
funds associated with Maverick Capital, Ltd. ("Maverick") and investment

entities and accounts managed and advised by Prentice Capital Management, LP
("Prentice" and, together with Maverick, the "Investors"), pursuant to which,

among other things, we agreed to sell to Maverick and Prentice an aggregate of
60,975,610 shares of our common stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Common
Stock"), at a price of $0.82 per share, in a private placement (the "Private
Placement") for an aggregate of $50 million, half of which was agreed to be
purchased by each Investor. The purchase price represented an 11% premium over
the closing price of the Company's Common Stock as of the date that the
definitive agreement was signed and announced. The Private Placement was
consummated on June 15, 2006. At the closing, 203,016 shares were purchased by a
holder of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with the
exercise of its preemptive rights. This amount reduced on a pro rata basis the
amount of shares Maverick and Prentice otherwise would have been entitled to
purchase under the Purchase Agreement.

In connection with the Private Placement, Soros converted all of its
outstanding Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series E and Series F
Convertible Preferred Stock (collectively, the "Preferred Stock") into
44,729,960 shares of the Company's Common Stock in accordance with the terms of
such Preferred Stock. Approximately 566 shares of the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock, which were held by investors other than Soros, automatically
converted into an aggregate of 1,073,936 shares of Common Stock in accordance
with the terms of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock. As a result of the
Private Placement, and in accordance with the terms of the anti-dilution
provisions contained in the Certificate of Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Rights of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock, the conversion price of the
Series F Convertible Preferred Stock was adjusted to $0.82 per share.

On the date of the closing of the Private Placement (the "Closing
Date"), we paid Soros $25 million in cash, which represented $4,000,000 of the
principal and $1,488,375 of accrued but unpaid interest on the outstanding
convertible notes held by Soros and substantially all of the accrued but unpaid
dividends on the shares of Preferred Stock that were converted by Soros in
connection with the Private Placement. We will use the remaining $25 million in
proceeds for general corporate purposes. Net proceeds to the Company were
approximately $23 million. Following the closing of the Private Placement, the
only Preferred Stock outstanding is

approximately 857 shares of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock, which are held
by investors other than Soros. We may use up to $1 million of the proceeds from
the Private Placement to redeem such shares of Series F Convertible Preferred
Stock, to the extent our Board of Directors determines to do so.

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, we agreed to use our
commercially reasonable best efforts to register the resale of the shares of
Common Stock sold in the Private Placement within 120 days of the Closing Date,
and to cause a registration statement covering such shares to be declared
effective within 180 days of the Closing Date.

RISK FACTORS
Shares offered in this prospectus involve a high degree of risk. You

should carefully consider the risk factors commencing on page 3 in determining
whether to purchase the shares.
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Our principal executive office is located at 42 West 39th Street, New
York, New York 10018, and our telephone number is (212) 944-8000.

2

RISK FACTORS

Before you invest in our Common Stock, you should be aware of the risks
described below, which we believe to be the material risks involved with an
investment in our Common Stock. You should carefully consider these risk
factors, together with all of the other information included in this prospectus,
including the documents incorporated in this prospectus by reference, before you
decide whether to purchase shares of our Common Stock.

We Have A History Of Losses And Expect That Losses Will Continue In The
Future. As of June 30, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of $108,969,000. For
the six months ended June 30, 2006, we incurred a net loss of $5,165,000. We
also incurred net losses of $3,820,000, $3,791,000 and $6,369,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We have incurred
substantial costs to develop our Web site and infrastructure. In order to expand
our business, we intend to invest in sales, marketing, merchandising,
operations, information systems, site development and additional personnel to
support these activities. We therefore may continue to incur substantial
operating losses. Our ability to become profitable depends on our ability to
generate and sustain substantially higher net sales while maintaining reasonable
expense levels, both of which are uncertain. If we do achieve profitability, we
cannot be certain that we would be able to sustain or increase profitability on
a quarterly or annual basis in the future.

Soros, Maverick And Prentice Each Own A Large Amount Of Our Stock And
Therefore Can Exert Significant Influence Over Our Management And Policies. As
of August 22, 2006, Soros beneficially owned, in the aggregate, approximately
39% of our Common Stock, and Maverick and Prentice each owned approximately 24%
of our Common Stock. We entered into a voting agreement with Soros, Maverick and
Prentice (the "Voting Agreement"), pursuant to which Soros has the right to
designate three designees to our Board of Directors, and Maverick and Prentice
each have the right to designate one designee. The Voting Agreement also
provides that one designee of Soros and the designee of each of Maverick and
Prentice have the right to serve on the Compensation Committee and the
Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors. If we establish
an Executive Committee, the designees of Soros, Maverick and Prentice will be
entitled to serve on such committee. Soros, Maverick and Prentice also have a
right of first refusal (the "Right of First Refusal") to provide the financing
in any private placement of our Common Stock that we seek to consummate within
one year of the Closing Date on a pro rata basis.

In view of their large percentage of ownership, Soros, Maverick and
Prentice each have the ability to exert significant influence over our
management and policies, such as the election of our directors, the appointment
of new management and the approval of any other action requiring the approval of
our stockholders, including any amendments to our certificate of incorporation,
a sale of all or substantially all of our assets or a merger.

Our Lenders Have Liens On Substantially All Of Our Assets And Could
Foreclose In The Event That We Default Under Our Loan Facility. Under the terms
of our loan facility, our lender has a first priority lien on substantially all
of our assets, including our cash balances. If we default under the loan
facility, our lender would be entitled, among other things, to foreclose on our
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assets in order to satisfy our obligations under the loan facility.

Our Ability To Maintain Our Minimum Availability Requirement and Pay
Our Indebtedness Under Our Loan Facility Is Dependent Upon Meeting Our Business
Plan. We are required to pay interest under our loan facility on a monthly
basis. Assuming we meet our business plan, we will be able to pay our interest
as required. To a certain extent, however, our ability to meet our business
plan, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative,
regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control, and therefore we
cannot assure you that based on our business plan we will generate sufficient
cash flow from operations to enable us to pay our indebtedness under the loan
facility and maintain our minimum availability requirement throughout the term
of the agreement. If we fall short of our business plan and are unable to raise
additional capital, we could default under our loan facility. In the event of a
default under the loan facility, our lender would be entitled, among other
things, to foreclose on our assets (whether inside or outside a bankruptcy
proceeding) 1in order to satisfy our obligations under the loan facility. See
"Risk Factors - Our Lenders Have Liens On Substantially All Of Our Assets And
Could Foreclose In The Event That We Default Under Our Loan Facility."

If We Are Not Accurate In Forecasting Our Revenues, We May Be Unable To
Adjust Our Operating Plans In A Timely Manner. Because our business has not yet
reached a mature stage, it is difficult for us to

forecast our revenues accurately. We base our current and future expense levels
and operating plans on expected revenues, but in the short-term a significant
portion of our expenses are fixed. Accordingly, we may be unable to adjust our
spending in a timely manner to compensate for any unexpected revenue shortfall.
This inability could cause our operating results in some future quarter to fall
below the expectations of securities analysts and investors. In that event, the
trading price of our Common Stock could decline significantly. In addition, any
such unexpected revenue shortfall could significantly affect our short-term cash
flow and our net worth, which could require us to seek additional financing
and/or cause a default under our loan facility. See "Risk Factors - We Are
Making A Substantial Investment In Our Business And May Need To Raise Additional

Funds," "Risk Factors - Our Ability To Comply With Our Financial Covenants And
Pay Our Indebtedness Under Our Loan Facility Is Dependent Upon Meeting Our
Business Plan," and "Risk Factors - Soros, Maverick And Prentice Each Own A

Large Amount Of Our Stock And Therefore Can Exert Significant Influence Over Our
Management And Policies

Our National Advertising Campaign and Other Marketing Initiatives May
Not Be Successful. Our success depends on our ability to attract customers on
cost-effective terms. We have relationships with online services, search
engines, and other Web sites and e-commerce businesses to provide other links
that direct customers to our Web site. In addition, during 2005 we launched our
first national television and advertising campaign. Such campaigns are expensive
and may not result in the cost effective acquisition of customers. We are
relying on the campaign as a significant source of traffic to our Web site and
new customers. If these campaigns and initiatives are not successful, our
results of operations will be adversely affected.

Unexpected Changes In Fashion Trends Could Cause Us To Have Either
Excess or Insufficient Inventory. Fashion trends can change rapidly, and our
business is sensitive to such changes. There can be no assurance that we will
accurately anticipate shifts in fashion trends and adjust our merchandise mix to
appeal to changing consumer tastes in a timely manner. If we misjudge the market
for our products or are unsuccessful in responding to changes in fashion trends
or in market demand, we could experience insufficient or excess inventory levels
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or higher markdowns, either of which would have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We Will Be Subject To Cyclical Variations In The Apparel And E-Commerce
Markets. The apparel industry historically has been subject to substantial
cyclical variations. Furthermore, Internet usage slows down in the summer
months. We and other apparel vendors rely on the expenditure of discretionary
income for most, if not all, sales. Economic downturns, whether real or
perceived, in economic conditions or prospects could adversely affect consumer
spending habits and, therefore, have a material adverse effect on our revenue,
cash flow and results of operations. Alternatively, any improvement, whether
real or perceived, in economic conditions or prospects could adversely impact
our ability to acquire merchandise and, therefore, have a material adverse
effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations, as our supply of merchandise is dependent on the inability of
designers and retailers to sell their merchandise in full-price venues. See
"Risk Factors - We Do Not Have Long Term Contracts With The Majority Of Our
Vendors And Therefore The Availability of Merchandise Is At Risk."

We Purchase Product From Some Indirect Supply Sources, Which Increases
Our Risk of Litigation Involving The Sale Of Non-Authentic Or Damaged Goods. We
purchase merchandise both directly from brand owners and indirectly from
retailers and third party distributors. The purchase of merchandise from parties
other than the brand owners increases the risk that we will mistakenly purchase
and sell non-authentic or damaged goods, which could result in potential
liability under applicable laws, regulations, agreements and orders. Moreover,
any claims by a brand owner, with or without merit, could be time consuming,
result in costly litigation, generate bad publicity for us, and have a material
adverse impact on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations.

If Our Co-Location Facility, Third Party Distribution Center Or Third
Party Call Center Fails, Our Business Could Be Interrupted For A Significant
Period Of Time. Our ability to receive and fulfill orders successfully and
provide high-quality customer service, largely depends on the efficient and
uninterrupted operation of our computer and communications hardware systems and
fulfillment center. Substantially all of our computer and communications
hardware is located at a single co-location facility owned by a third party in
New York City. Primarily all of our inventory is held, and our customer orders
are filled, at a third party distribution center located in Virginia, and a
large majority of our customer service representatives are employees of a third
party call center in

Ohio. These operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from fire,
flood, storms, power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks, acts
of war, break-ins, earthquake and similar events. We do not presently have
redundant systems in multiple locations or a formal disaster recovery plan.
Accordingly, a failure at one of these facilities could interrupt our business
for a significant period of time, and our business interruption insurance may be
insufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur. Any such interruption
would negatively impact our sales, results of operations and cash flows for the
period in which it occurred, and could have a long-term adverse effect on our
relationships with our customers and suppliers.

Security Breaches To Our Systems And Database Could Cause Interruptions
to Our Business And Impact Our Reputation With Customers, And We May Incur
Significant Expenses to Protect Against Such Breaches. A fundamental requirement
for online commerce and communications is the secure transmission of
confidential information over public networks. There can be no assurance that
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advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography,
or other events or developments will not result in a compromise or breach of the
algorithms we use to protect customer transaction and personal data contained in
our customer database. A party who is able to circumvent our security measures
could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions in our
operations. If any such compromise of our security were to occur, it could have
a material adverse effect on our reputation with customers, thereby affecting
our long-term growth prospects. In addition, we may be required to expend
significant capital and other resources to protect against such security
breaches or to alleviate problems caused by such breaches.

Brand Owners Could Establish Procedures To Limit Our Ability To
Purchase Products Indirectly. Brand owners have implemented, and are likely to
continue to implement, procedures to limit or control off-price retailers'
ability to purchase products indirectly. In addition, several brand owners in
the U.S. have distinctive legal rights rendering them the only legal importer of
their respective brands into the U.S. If we acquire such product indirectly from
distributors and other third parties who may not have complied with applicable
customs laws and regulations, such goods could be subject to seizure from our
inventory by U.S. Customs Service, and the importer may have a civil action for
damages against us. See "Risk Factors - We Do Not Have Long Term Contracts With
The Majority of Our Vendors And Therefore The Availability Of Merchandise Is At
Risk."

Our Growth May Place A Significant Strain On Our Management And
Administrative Resources And Cause Disruptions In Our Business. Historically,
our growth has placed, and any further growth is likely to continue to place, a
significant strain on our management and administrative resources. To be
successful, we must continue to implement information management systems and
improve our operating, administrative, financial and accounting systems and
controls. We will also need to train new employees and maintain close
coordination among our executive, accounting, finance, marketing, merchandising,
operations and technology functions. Any failure to implement such systems and
training, and to maintain such coordination, could affect our ability to plan
for, and react quickly to, changes in our business and, accordingly, could cause
an adverse impact on our cash flow and results of operations in the periods
during which such changes occur. In addition, as our workforce grows, our
exposure to potential employment liability issues increases, and we will need to
continue to improve our human resources functions in order to protect against
such increased exposure. Moreover, our business is dependent upon our ability to
expand our third-party fulfillment operations, customer service operations,
technology infrastructure, and inventory levels to accommodate increases in
demand, particularly during the peak holiday selling season. Our planned
expansion efforts in these areas could cause disruptions in our business. Any
failure to expand our third-party fulfillment operations, customer service
operations, technology infrastructure or inventory levels at the pace needed to
support customer demand could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow
and results of operations during the period in which such failures occur and
could have a long-term effect on our reputation with our customers.

We Are Heavily Dependent On Third-Party Relationships, And Failures By
A Third Party Could Cause Interruptions To Our Business. We are heavily
dependent upon our relationships with our fulfillment operations provider, third
party call center and Web hosting provider, delivery companies like UPS, DHL and
the United States Postal Service, and credit card processing companies such as
Paymentech and Cybersource to service our customers' needs. To the extent that
there is a slowdown in mail service or package delivery services, whether as a
result of labor difficulties, terrorist activity or otherwise, our cash flow and
results of operations would be negatively impacted during such slowdown, and the
results of such slowdown could have a long-term negative effect on our
reputation with our customers. The failure of our fulfillment operations
provider, third party call
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center, credit card processors or Web hosting provider to properly perform their
services for us could cause similar effects. Our business is also generally
dependent upon our ability to obtain the services of other persons and entities
necessary for the development and maintenance of our business. If we fail to
obtain the services of any such person or entities upon which we are dependent
on satisfactory terms, or we are unable to replace such relationship, we would
have to expend additional resources to develop such capabilities ourselves,
which could have a material adverse impact on our short-term cash flow and
results of operations and our long-term prospects.

We Are In Competition With Companies Much Larger Than Ourselves.
Electronic commerce generally and, in particular, the online retail apparel and
fashion accessories market, is a new, dynamic, high-growth market and is rapidly
changing and intensely competitive. Our competition for customers comes from a
variety of sources including:

existing land-based, full price retailers, that are using the
Internet to expand their channels of distribution;

less established online companies;
internet sites;
traditional direct marketers; and

traditional off-price retail stores, which may or may not use the
Internet to grow their customer base.

Competition in our industry has intensified, and we expect this trend to
continue as the list of our competitors grows. Many of our competitors and
potential competitors have longer operating histories, significantly greater
resources, greater brand name recognition and more firmly established supply
relationships. We believe that the principal competitive factors in our market
include:

brand recognition;

merchandise selection;

price;

convenience;

customer service;

order delivery performance; and

site features.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against
competitors and future competitors, and competitive pressures faced by us could
force us to increase expenses and/or decrease our prices at some point in the
future.

We Do Not Have Long Term Contracts With Our Vendors And Therefore The

Availability Of Merchandise Is At Risk. We do not have any agreements

controlling the long-term availability of merchandise or the continuation of
particular pricing practices. Our contracts with suppliers typically do not

10
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restrict such suppliers from selling products to other buyers. There can be no
assurance that our current suppliers will continue to sell products to us on
current terms or that we will be able to establish new or otherwise extend
current supply relationships to ensure product acquisitions in a timely and
efficient manner and on acceptable commercial terms. In addition, in order to
entice new vendors to open up relationships with us, we sometimes are required
to either make prepayments or agree to shortened payment terms. Our ability to
develop and maintain relationships with reputable suppliers and obtain high
quality merchandise is critical to our success. If we are unable to develop and
maintain relationships with suppliers that would allow us to obtain a sufficient
amount and variety of quality merchandise on acceptable commercial terms, our
ability to satisfy our customers' needs, and therefore our long-term growth
prospects, would be materially adversely affected. See "Risk Factors - Brand
Owners Could Establish Procedures to Limit Our Ability to Purchase Products
Indirectly."

We Need To Further Establish Brand Name Recognition. We believe that
further establishing, maintaining and enhancing our brand is a critical aspect
of our efforts to attract and expand our online traffic. The number of Internet
sites that offer competing services, many of which already have well established
brands in online services or the retail apparel industry generally, increases
the importance of establishing and maintaining brand name recognition. Promotion
of Bluefly.com will depend largely on our success in providing a high quality
online experience supported by a high level of customer service, which cannot be
assured. In addition, to attract and retain online users, and to promote and
maintain Bluefly.com in response to competitive pressures, we may find it
necessary to increase substantially our advertising and marketing expenditures.
If we are unable to provide high quality online services or customer support, or
otherwise fail to promote and maintain Bluefly.com, or if we incur excessive
expenses in an attempt to promote and maintain Bluefly.com, our long-term growth
prospects would be materially adversely affected.

There Can Be No Assurance That Our Technology Systems Will Be Able To
Handle Increased Traffic; Implementation Of Changes To Web Site. A key element
of our strategy is to generate a high volume of traffic on, and use of,
Bluefly.com. Accordingly, the satisfactory performance, reliability and
availability of Bluefly.com, transaction processing systems and network
infrastructure are critical to our reputation and our ability to attract and
retain customers, as well as maintain adequate customer service levels. Our
revenues will depend on the number of visitors who shop on Bluefly.com and the
volume of orders we can handle. Unavailability of our Web site or reduced order
fulfillment performance would reduce the volume of goods sold and could also
adversely affect consumer perception of our brand name. We may experience
periodic system interruptions from time to time. If there is a substantial
increase in the volume of traffic on Bluefly.com or the number of orders placed
by customers, we will be required to expand and upgrade further our technology,
transaction processing systems and network infrastructure. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to accurately project the rate or timing of
increases, if any, in the use of Bluefly.com or expand and upgrade our systems
and infrastructure to accommodate such increases on a timely basis. In order to
remain competitive, we must continue to enhance and improve the responsiveness,
functionality and features of Bluefly.com, which is particularly challenging
given the rapid rate at which new technologies, customer preferences and
expectations and industry standards and practices are evolving in the online
commerce industry. Accordingly, we redesign and enhance various functions on our
Web site on a regular basis, and we may experience instability and performance
issues as a result of these changes.

We May Be Subject To Higher Return Rates. We recognize that purchases

11



Edgar Filing: BLUEFLY INC - Form S-3

of apparel and fashion accessories over the Internet may be subject to higher
return rates than traditional store bought merchandise. We have established a
liberal return policy in order to accommodate our customers and overcome any
hesitancy they may have with shopping via the Internet. As a result, our reserve
for returns and credit card chargebacks for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 has been
37.8%, 36.6% and 37.1%, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2006,
our reserve for returns and credit chard chargebacks was 40.0%. If return rates
are higher than expected, our business, prospects, financial condition, cash
flows and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our Success Is Largely Dependent Upon Our Executive Personnel. We
believe our success will depend to a significant extent on the efforts and
abilities of our executive personnel. In particular, we rely upon their
strategic guidance, their relationships and credibility in the vendor and
financial communities and their ability to recruit key operating personnel. Our
current employment agreements with our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Marketing Officer run through March 2007, July 2006 and
September 2008, respectively, however there can be no assurance that any of them
will not terminate their employment earlier. An extension of each of the
employment agreements of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
is currently being negotiated. The loss of the services of any of our executive
officers could have a material adverse effect on our credibility in the vendor
communities and our ability to recruit new key operating personnel.

Our Success Is Dependent Upon Our Ability To Attract New Key Personnel.
Our operations will also depend to a great extent on our ability to attract new
key personnel with relevant experience and retain existing key personnel in the
future. The market for qualified personnel is extremely competitive. Our failure
to attract additional qualified employees could have a material adverse effect
on our prospects for long-term growth.

There Are Inherent Risks Involved In Expanding Our Operations. We may
choose to expand our operations by developing new Web sites, promoting new or
complementary products or sales formats, expanding the breadth and depth of
products and services offered, expanding our market presence through
relationships with third

parties, adopting non-Internet based channels for distributing our products, or
consummating acquisitions or investments. Expansion of our operations in this
manner would require significant additional expenses and development, operations
and editorial resources and would strain our management, financial and
operational resources. For example, we have historically expended significant
internal resources in connection with the redesign of our Web site and the
implementation of our online strategic alliances. Moreover, in the event that we
expand upon our efforts to open brick-and-mortar outlet stores, we will be
required to devote significant internal resources and capital to such efforts.
There can be no assurance that we would be able to expand our efforts and
operations in a cost-effective or timely manner or that any such efforts would
increase overall market acceptance. Furthermore, any new business or Web site
that is not favorably received by consumer or trade customers could damage our
reputation.

We May Be Liable For Infringing The Intellectual Property Rights Of
Others. Third parties may assert infringement claims against us. From time to
time in the ordinary course of business we have been, and we expect to continue
to be, subject to claims alleging infringement of the trademarks and other
intellectual property rights of third parties. These claims and any resulting
litigation, if it occurs, could subject us to significant liability for damages.
In addition, even if we prevail, litigation could be time-consuming and
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expensive and could result in the diversion of our time and attention. Any
claims from third parties may also result in limitations on our ability to use
the intellectual property subject to these claims unless we are able to enter
into agreements with the third parties making these claims.

We May Be Liable for Product Liability Claims. We sell products
manufactured by third parties, some of which may be defective. If any product
that we sell were to cause physical injury or injury to property, the injured
party or parties could bring claims against us as the retailer of the product.
Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover every claim that could be
asserted. If a successful claim were brought against the Company in excess of
our insurance coverage, it could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow
and on our reputation with customers. Unsuccessful claims could result in the
expenditure of funds and management time and could have a negative impact on our
business.

We Cannot Guarantee The Protection Of Our Intellectual Property. Our
intellectual property is critical to our success, and we rely on trademark,
copyright, domain names and trade secret protection to protect our proprietary
rights. Third parties may infringe or misappropriate our trademarks or other
proprietary rights, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
prospects, results of operations or financial condition. While we enter into
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and strategic
partners and generally control access to and distribution of our proprietary
information, the steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not
prevent misappropriation. We are pursuing registration of various trademarks,
service marks and domain names in the United States and abroad. Effective
trademark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be available in every
country, and there can be no assurance that the United States or foreign
jurisdictions will afford us any protection for our intellectual property. There
also can be no assurance that any of our intellectual property rights will not
be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. In addition, we do not know whether
we will be able to defend our proprietary rights since the validity,
enforceability and scope of protection of proprietary rights in Internet-related
industries is uncertain and still evolving. Moreover, even to the extent that we
are successful in defending our rights, we could incur substantial costs in
doing so.

Our Business Could Be Harmed By Consumers' Concerns About The Security
Of Transactions Over The Internet. Concerns over the security of transactions
conducted on the Internet and commercial online services, the increase in
identity theft and the privacy of users may also inhibit the growth of the
Internet and commercial online services, especially as a means of conducting
commercial transactions. Moreover, although we have developed systems and
processes that are designed to protect consumer information and prevent
fraudulent credit card transactions and other security breaches, failure to
mitigate such fraud or breaches could have a material adverse effect on our
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We Face Legal Uncertainties Relating To The Internet In General And To
Our Industry In Particular And May Become Subject To Costly Government
Regulation. We are not currently subject to direct regulation by any domestic or
foreign governmental agency, other than regulations applicable to businesses
generally, and laws or regulations directly applicable to online commerce.
However, it is possible that laws and regulations may be adopted that would
apply to the Internet and other online services. Furthermore, the growth and

development of the market for online commerce may prompt calls for more
stringent consumer protection laws that may impose additional burdens on those
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companies conducting business online. The adoption of any additional laws or
regulations may increase our cost of doing business and/or decrease the demand
for our products and services and increase our cost of doing business.

The applicability to the Internet of existing laws in various Jjurisdictions
governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes, libel and
personal privacy is uncertain and may take years to resolve. Any such new
legislation or regulation, the application of laws and regulations from
jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply to our business, or the
application of existing laws and regulations to the Internet and online commerce
could also increase our cost of doing business. In addition, if we were alleged
to have violated federal, state or foreign, civil or criminal law, we could face
material liability and damage to our reputation and, even if we successfully
defend any such claim, we would incur significant costs in connection with such
defense.

We Face Uncertainties Relating To Sales And Other Taxes. We are not
currently required to pay sales or other similar taxes in respect of shipments
of goods into states other than Virginia, Ohio, New Jersey and New York.
However, state taxation laws and regulations may change in the future, and one
or more states may seek to impose sales tax collection obligations on
out-of-state companies, such as our company, that engage in online commerce. In
addition, any new operation in states outside Virginia, Ohio, New Jersey and New
York could subject shipments into such states to state sales taxes under current
or future laws. A successful assertion by one or more states or any foreign
country that the sale of merchandise by us is subject to sales or other taxes,
could subject us to material liabilities and, to the extent that we pass such
costs on to our customers, could decrease our sales.

The Holders Of Our Common Stock May Be Adversely Affected By The Rights
Of Holders Of Preferred Stock That May Be Issued In The Future. Our certificate
of incorporation and by-laws, as amended, contain certain provisions that may
delay, defer or prevent a takeover. Our Board of Directors has the authority to
issue up to 15,479,250 additional shares of Preferred Stock, and to determine
the price, rights, preferences and restrictions, including voting rights, of
those shares, without any further vote or action by the stockholders.
Accordingly, our Board of Directors is empowered, without approval of the
holders of Common Stock, to issue preferred stock, for any reason and at any
time, with such rates of dividends, redemption provisions, liquidation
preferences, voting rights, conversion privileges and other characteristics as
it may deem necessary or appropriate. The rights of holders of Common Stock will
be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the future.

We Rely On The Effectiveness Of Our Internal Controls. Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires that we establish and maintain an
adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting and
assess on an on-going basis the design and operating effectiveness of our
internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. Our
independent registered accounting firm will be required to audit the design and
operating effectiveness of our internal controls and attest to management's
assessment of the design and the effectiveness of our internal controls. The
first such audit will be required for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.
It is possible that, as we prepare for this audit, we could discover certain
deficiencies in the design and/or operation of our internal controls that could
adversely affect our ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data. We have invested and will continue to invest significant resources in this
process. Because management's assessment of internal controls has not been
required to be reported in the past, we are uncertain as to what impact a
conclusion that deficiencies exist in our internal controls over financial
reporting would have on the trading price of our Common Stock.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made forward-looking statements in this prospectus and in
documents that we incorporate by reference into this prospectus. These
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking
statements.

Forward-looking statements include information concerning our possible
or assumed future results of operations as well as statements that include the
words "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend" or similar expressions. You
should understand that certain important factors, including those set forth in
"Risk Factors" above and elsewhere in this prospectus and the documents that we
incorporate by reference into this prospectus, could affect our future results
of operations and could cause those results to differ materially from those
expressed in our forward-looking statements. In connection with these forward-
looking statements, you should carefully review the risks set forth in this
prospectus and the documents we incorporate by reference into this prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the sale of the Common Stock covered by this
prospectus are solely for the account of the selling stockholders. Accordingly,
we will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares from the selling
stockholders. However, such shares include 706, 644 shares issuable upon the
exercise of warrants held by selling stockholders. In the event that all of such
warrants are exercised for cash, the aggregate proceeds received by us would be
approximately $1,062,000. There can be no assurance concerning the number or the
timing of the exercise of such warrants by such selling stockholders at this
date. In addition, because such warrants contain provisions allowing for a
cashless exercise under certain circumstances, there can be no assurance that we
would receive all such proceeds even if such warrants are exercised. Any
proceeds realized from the exercise of such warrants will be used by us for
general working capital.

SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

This prospectus relates to the resale of up to 111,372,291 shares of
our Common Stock by the selling stockholders listed below. These shares include:
(a) 60,975,610 shares sold by us to the Investors in the Private Placement;

(b) 4,273,504 shares sold by us to Soros in a rights offering in January 2001;
(c) 43,229,900 shares issued to Soros in June 2006 upon conversion of previously
outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock; (d) 100,000 shares issuable
upon the exercise of warrants with an exercise price of $0.88 per share issued
to Soros in March 2001 in connection with a private placement; (e) 160,000
shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants with an exercise price of $1.68
per share issued to Soros in March 2002 in connection with a private placement;
(f) 296,644 shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants with an exercise price
of $1.88 per share issued to Soros in May 2002 in connection with a private
placement; (g) 1,186,573 shares sold by us pursuant to a private placement in
May 2002; (h) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants with an
exercise price of $1.12 per share issued to Soros in January 2003 in connection
with a private placement; (i) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of
warrants with an exercise price of $0.78 per share issued to Soros in March 2003
in connection with a private placement; (j) 1,000,000 shares issued in partial
payment of the placement agent fee incurred in connection with the Private
Placement; and (k) 100,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of a warrant issued
to a service provider in February 2006 with an exercise price of $1.00 per
share.
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The table below sets forth certain information known to us, based upon
written representations from the selling stockholders, with respect to the
beneficial ownership of our Common Stock by the selling stockholders as of
August 22, 2006. The following table assumes that the selling stockholders sell
all of their shares being offered under this prospectus. We are unable to
determine the exact number of shares that will actually be sold.

In the table below, the percentage of shares beneficially owned is
based on 129,240,660 shares outstanding at August 22, 2006, determined in
accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act. Under such rule, beneficial
ownership includes any shares as to which the individual has sole or shared
voting power or investment power and also any shares which the individual has
the right to acquire within sixty days of such date through the exercise of any
warrants or other rights. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes, each
person has sole voting and investment power (or shares such powers with his or
her spouse) with respect to the shares shown as beneficially owned.

10

Number of Shares Beneficially
Owned Prior to the Offering

Name of Selling Stockholder Number Percent
Entities affiliated with Maverick Capital,
5w (O 30,386,297 23.51%
Prentice Capital Partners, LP (2) .......... 816, 784 0.63%
Prentice Capital Partners QP, LP (3) ....... 4,037,731 3.12%
Prentice Capital Offshore, Ltd. (4) ........ 9,051,470 7.00%
S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (5) ......... 11,438,618 8.85%
GPC XLITII, LLC (6) t ettt eeeeennnaeeennnnns 2,003,065 1.55%
PEC T, LLC (7) teeeetteeeeeeeeeenneeennnens 3,038,629 2.35%
Portside Growth and Opportunity Fund (8) . 1,121,924 (18) 0.86%
Allen & Company LLC (9) .« innnneenn. 1,000,000 0.77%
Genesis Select Corporation (10) ............ 178,500(11) 0.14%
Quantum Industrial Partners LDC(1l2) ........ 49,226,779 (13) 37.91%
SFM Domestic Investments LLC(14) .......... 1,609,902 (15) 1.25%
TOT AL ittt ettt et eetee e eeeeenaannaeas 113,909,669 87.60%
1. Consists of: (a) 5,790,048 shares held by Maverick Fund USA, Ltd.; (b)

13,134,660 shares held by Maverick Fund, L.D.C.; and (c) 11,461,589 shares
held by Maverick Fund II, Ltd. Maverick Capital, Ltd. is an investment

adviser registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940

and, as such, has beneficial ownership of the shares held by Maverick Fund
USA, Ltd., Maverick Fund, L.D.C. and Maverick Fund II, Ltd. through the
investment discretion it exercises over these accounts. Maverick Capital
Management, LLC is the General Partner of Maverick Capital, Ltd. Lee S.

Ainslie III is a manager of Maverick Capital Management, LLC and is granted

sole investment discretion pursuant to Maverick Capital Management, LLC's

regulations. The address for the entities affiliated with Maverick Capital,

Ltd. is 300 Crescent Court, 18th Floor, Dallas, TX 75201.
2. Prentice Capital Management, LP has investment and voting power with
respect to the securities held by Prentice Capital Partners, LP. Mr.

Michael Zimmerman is the managing member of the general partner of Prentice

Shares Being
Offered

30,386,297
816,784
4,037,731
9,051,470
11,438,618
2,003,065
3,038,629
203,016
1,000,000
100, 000
47,734,307
1,562,374
111,372,291
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Capital Management, LP. Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr.
Zimmerman disclaim beneficial ownership of any of these securities.
Prentice Capital Management, LP has investment and voting power with
respect to the securities held by Prentice Capital Partners QP, LP. Mr.
Michael Zimmerman is the managing member of the general partner of Prentice
Capital Management, LP. Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr.
Zimmerman disclaim beneficial ownership of any of these securities.
Prentice Capital Management, LP has investment and voting power with
respect to the securities held by Prentice Capital Offshore, Ltd. Mr.
Michael Zimmerman is the managing member of the general partner of Prentice
Capital Management, LP. Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr.
Zimmerman disclaim beneficial ownership of any of these securities.
Pursuant to an investment management agreement among S.A.C Capital
Advisors, LLC, Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr. Zimmerman, Prentice
Capital Management, LP manages an investment account that contains certain
securities, including those referenced herein, held by S.A.C. Capital
Associates, LLC (the "Managed Account").

The securities in the Managed Account are held in the name of

S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC. Prentice Capital Management, LP has, except
in limited circumstances, the power to vote or to direct the vote and to
dispose or to direct the disposition of the securities in the Managed
Account, including the securities referenced herein. Each of S.A.C. Capital
Advisors, LLC, S.A.C. Capital Management, LLC (investment managers to
S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC), S.A.C. Capital Associates LLC and

Mr. Steven A. Cohen, who controls each of S.A.C. Capital Advisors, LLC and
S.A.C. Capital Management, Capital Associates, LLC), S.A.C. Capital
Advisors, LLC and S.A.C. Capital Management, LLC, disclaim beneficial
ownership of any of the securities held in the Managed Account, and each
disclaims group ownership with Prentice Capital Management, LP as to the
securities held in the Managed Account and as to any other securities that
are beneficially owned by Prentice Capital Management, LP or its
affiliates. Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Michael Zimmerman
disclaim beneficial ownership of any securities held in the Managed Account
except to the extent of their pecuniary interest.

Prentice Capital Management, LP has investment and voting power with
respect to the securities held by GPC XLIII, LLC. Mr. Michael Zimmerman is
the managing member of the general partner of Prentice Capital Management,
LP. Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr. Zimmerman disclaim
beneficial ownership of any of these securities.

Prentice Capital Management, LP has investment and voting power with
respect to the securities held by PEC I, LLC. Mr. Michael Zimmerman is the
managing member of the general partner of Prentice Capital Management, LP.
Each of Prentice Capital Management, LP and Mr. Zimmerman disclaim
beneficial ownership of any of these securities.

Ramius Capital Group, L.L.C. ("Ramius Capital") is the investment adviser
of Portside Growth and Opportunity Fund and consequently has voting control
and investment discretion over securities held by Portside. Peter A. Cohen,
Morgan B. Stark, Thomas W. Strauss and Jeffrey M. Solomon are the sole
managing members of C4S & Co., L.L.C., the sole managing member of Ramius
Capital. As a result,
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Messrs. Cohen, Stark, Strauss and Solomon may be considered beneficial
owners of any shares deemed to be beneficially owned by Ramius Capital.
Messrs. Cohen, Stark, Strauss and Solomon disclaim beneficial ownership of
these shares.

Herbert A. Allen III, as President of Allen & Company LLC, may be deemed to
have voting and investment control over such securities

Alan Budd Zuckerman, as President of Genesis Select Corporation, may be
deemd to have voting and investment control over such securities.
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Includes 100,000 shares issuable upon exercise of a warrant at an exercise
price of $1.00 per share.

Quantum Industrial Partners LDC ("QIP") is an exempted limited duration
company formed under the laws of the Cayman Islands with its principal
address at Kaya Flamboyan 9, Willemstad, Curacao, Netherlands Antilles. QIH
Management Investor, L.P. ("QIHMI"), an investment advisory firm organized
as a Delaware limited partnership, is a minority shareholder of, and is
vested with investment discretion with respect to portfolio assets held for
the account of QIP. The sole general partner of QIHMI is QIH Management
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("QIH Management"). Soros Fund
Management LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("SFM"), is the sole
managing member of QIH Management. George Soros 1is the Chairman of SFM and,
in such capacity, may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over
securities held for the account of QIP.

Represents: (a) 48,599,355 shares of Common Stock; (b) warrant to purchase
96,830 shares at an exercise price of $0.88 per share; (c) warrant to
purchase 58,098 shares at an exercise price of $1.68 per share; (d) warrant
to purchase 96,830 shares at an exercise price of $1.68 per share; (e)
warrant to purchase 287,250 shares at an exercise price of $1.88 per share;
(f) warrant to purchase 24,208 shares at an exercise price of $1.12 per
share; (g) warrant to purchase 24,208 shares at an exercise price of $0.78
per share; and (h) 40,000 shares issuable in the aggregate upon the
exercise of options held for the benefit of QIP by an employee of SFM and
an advisor to QIP who serve on the Company's Board of Directors.

SFM Domestic Investments LLC ("SFMDI") is a Delaware limited liability
company. George Soros is the sole managing member of SFMDI and, in such
capacity, may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power over
securities held for the account of SFMDI.

Represents: (a) 1,590,682 shares of Common Stock; (b) warrant to purchase
3,170 shares at an exercise price of $0.88 per share; (c) warrant to
purchase 1,902 shares at an exercise price of $1.68 per share; (d) warrant
to purchase 3,170 shares at an exercise price of $1.68 per share; (e)
warrant to purchase 9,394 shares at an exercise price of $1.88 per share;
(f) warrant to purchase 792 shares at an exercise price of $1.12 per share;
and (g) warrant to purchase 792 shares at an exercise price of $0.78 per
share.

The resale of these shares is covered by a separate Registration Statement
on Form S-3 (SEC File No. 333-111957).

1,452,472 of these shares are covered by a separate Registration Statement
on Form S-3 (SEC File No. 333-111957)

Represents: (a) 338,852 shares of Common Stock; (b) warrant to purchase
86,207 shares at an exercise price of $2.87 per share; and (c) 696,865
shares of issuable upon conversion of 571.429 shares of the Company's
Series F Convertible Preferred Stock (which represents 66.7% of the
currently outstanding shares of the Company's Series F Convertible
Preferred Stock).

The resale of these shares is covered by a separate Registration Statement
on Form S-3 (SEC File No. 333-127176).

MATERIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

Indemnification Provisions Applicable To All Selling Stockholders

We have agreed to indemnify each of the selling stockholders for

certain liabilities arising out of the registration statement of which this
prospectus 1is a part.

Material Relationships and Agreements with Maverick, Prentice and Soros

As discussed in greater detail above under the section "Prospectus

Summary - Recent Developments," in June 2006, we entered into the Purchase
Agreement with Soros, Maverick and Prentice, pursuant to which, among other
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things, we agreed to sell to Maverick and Prentice an aggregate of 60,975,610
shares of Common Stock in the Private Placement. At the closing of the Private
Placement, 203,016 shares of Common Stock were purchased by
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Portside Growth and Opportunity Fund ("Portside") in connection with the
exercise of its preemptive rights. This amount reduced on a pro rata basis the
amount of shares Maverick and Prentice otherwise would have been entitled to
purchase under the Purchase Agreement.

We agreed with the selling stockholders that purchased shares in the
Private Placement that we would use our commercially reasonable best efforts to
register the resale of the shares of Common Stock sold in the Private Placement
within 120 days of the Closing Date, and to cause a registration statement
covering such shares to be declared effective within 180 days of the Closing
Date. We agreed to pay such selling stockholders' expenses in connection
therewith (exclusive of any selling commissions or similar fees). In addition,
we have agreed to indemnify Soros, Maverick and Prentice for any and all
liabilities, losses, damages, claims, costs and expenses, interest, awards,
judgments, penalties (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees
and expenses) actually suffered or incurred by them, arising out of or resulting
from any breach of our representations and warranties in the Purchase Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have no obligation to compensate any of such
selling stockholders for punitive damages and our liability to each selling
stockholder under such indemnification provision cannot exceed 100% of the
purchase price for the shares purchased by such selling stockholder in the
Private Placement.

We entered into the Voting Agreement, pursuant to which Soros has the
right to designate three designees to our Board of Directors and each of
Maverick and Prentice have the right to designate one designee, subject to
minimum ownership thresholds and subject to compliance with applicable Nasdaqg
rules. The Voting Agreement also provides that one designee of Soros and the
designee of each of Maverick and Prentice will have the right to serve on the
Compensation Committee and the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board
of Directors, subject to compliance with Nasdaqg's rules regarding independent
directors serving on such committees, or Nasdaqg's transitional rules, to the
extent applicable. If our Board of Directors establishes an Executive Committee,
the designees of Soros, Maverick and Prentice will be entitled to serve on such
committee.

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, Soros, Maverick and
Prentice each agreed that it will not, without the approval of a majority of the
independent directors of the Company (i) for a period of three years from the
closing date of the Private Placement, purchase or acquire, or agree to purchase
or acquire, any shares of our capital stock, subject to certain exceptions,
including exceptions for (x) the purchase of shares pursuant to their Right of
First Refusal and, (y) after eighteen months from the Closing Date, a purchase
by any Investor of shares of capital stock up to a level which does not equal or
exceed the lesser of (A) 30% of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock at
the time of such purchase, or (B) the ownership of Soros at the time of such
purchase; or a purchase by Soros of shares of capital stock in an amount up to
15% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock on the Closing Date, (ii) for a
period of five years from the Closing Date, except as provided in the Voting
Agreement or the Purchase Agreement, join a partnership, limited partnership,
syndicate or other group within the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Exchange
Act, including a group consisting of other Investors for the purpose of
acquiring, holding or voting any shares of capital stock of the Company, or
(iii) for a period of three years from the Closing Date, seek to commence a
proxy contest or other proxy solicitation for the purposes of modifying the
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composition of the Board of Directors.

The Purchase Agreement further provides that, subject to certain
limited exceptions, Soros, Maverick and Prentice will not, for a period of six
(6) months after the Closing Date, sell, offer to sell, solicit offers to buy,
dispose of, loan, pledge or grant any right with respect to, any shares of
capital stock of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of an Agreement dated June
7, 2006 between us and Portside, Portside also agreed that it will not, for a
period of six (6) months after the Closing Date, sell, offer to sell, solicit
offers to buy, dispose of, loan, pledge or grant any right with respect to, any
shares of capital stock of the Company.

The Purchase Agreement also provides the Right of First Refusal to
Soros, Maverick and Prentice to provide the financing in any private placement
of our Common Stock that we seek to consummate within one year of the Closing
Date. The Right of First Refusal is subject to certain maximum ownership
restrictions and certain other exceptions set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

The shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Soros and included in
this prospectus (including shares issued upon the conversion of our Convertible
Preferred Stock and shares issuable upon exercise of warrants) were acquired by
it in various private placements from 1999 to 2003. As a result of these
financings, prior to the
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consummation of the Private Placement, Soros owned a majority of our Common
Stock, and following the Private Placement, it remains our largest stockholder.
As of August 22, 2006, Soros beneficially owned, in the aggregate, approximately
39% of our Common Stock, and Maverick and Prentice each owned approximately 24%
of our Common Stock.

Historically, our credit facility has been secured, in part, by a $2
million letter of credit issued by Soros in favor of the lender. We paid Soros
an annual fee in connection with the issuance of such letter of credit, and
granted Soros a lien on all of our assets as security to Soros in the event that
the lender was to draw down on the letter of credit. In July 2006, the lender
agreed to release the Soros letter of credit and, accordingly, no further fees
are due to Soros, and Soros no longer has a lien on our assets.

Material Relationships and Agreements with Allen & Company LLC

We engaged Allen & Company LLC ("Allen") to serve as our financial
advisor and placement agent in connection with the Private Placement. Pursuant
to the terms of an Engagement Letter dated March 30, 2006 (the "Engagement
Letter"), we agreed to pay Allen a placement fee for such service in the
aggregate amount of 5% of the gross proceeds from the Private Placement. On June
5, 2006, we entered into a Fee Letter with Soros pursuant to which we and Soros
each agreed to pay one half of the placement fee payable to Allen as a result of
the consummation of the Private Placement. Accordingly, the total fee that we
were required to pay Allen in connection with the Private Placement was $1.25
million. On July 18, 2006, we entered into an amendment to the Engagement Letter
pursuant to which Allen agreed to accept 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock in
satisfaction of $1.0 million of the fee payable to it by us. Accordingly, we
paid $1.0 million of such fee through the issuance of 1,000,000 shares of our
Common Stock, and paid the remainder in cash. The re-sale by Allen of the shares
issued to it as partial payment for its fee are covered by the registration
statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Material Relationships and Agreements with Genesis Select Corporation
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We have engaged Genesis Select Corporation ("Genesis") to provide
advisory services to us in connection with our investor relations efforts.
Pursuant to the terms of such engagement, we pay Genesis a monthly retainer, and
also issued to Genesis a warrant to purchase 100,000 shares of our Common Stock
at an exercise price of $1.00 per share. The re-sale by Genesis of the shares
issuable upon exercise of such warrant are covered by the registration statement
of which this prospectus is a part.

General

Except as described above and in the documents incorporated by
reference into this prospectus, none of the selling shareholders listed in the
table have held any position or office or have had a material relationship with
us or any of our affiliates within the past three years.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We are registering the resale of the shares of our Common Stock on
behalf of the selling stockholders. As used in this prospectus, the term selling
stockholders includes pledgees, assignees, transferees or other
successors—in-interest selling shares received from the selling stockholders as
pledgors, borrowers or in connection with other non-sale-related transfers after
the date of this prospectus. This prospectus may also be used by transferees of
the selling stockholders, including broker-dealers or other transferees who
borrow or purchase the shares to settle or close out short sales of shares of
common stock. The selling stockholders will act independently of us in making
decisions with respect to the timing, manner, and size of each sale or non-sale
related transfer. Each selling stockholder (other than Genesis) has agreed that
it will not, for a period of six (6) months after the Closing Date, sell, offer
to sell, solicit offers to buy, dispose of, loan, pledge or grant any right with
respect to, any shares of capital stock of the Company.

This prospectus covers the selling stockholders resale of up to
111,372,291 shares of Common Stock. The shares of our Common Stock covered by
this prospectus may be offered and sold from time to time by the selling
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stockholders. The selling stockholders may sell the shares on the Nasdag Capital
Market, the Boston Stock Exchange, any other exchange or market on which the
shares of our Common Stock are then traded, or in private sales at negotiated
prices.

A selling stockholder may use any one or more of the following methods
when selling shares:

ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the
broker—-dealer solicits purchasers;

block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the
shares as agent but may position and resell a portion of the

block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the
broker—-dealer for its account;

an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the
applicable exchange;

privately negotiated transactions;
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settlement of short sales entered into after the date of this
prospectus;

broker-dealers may agree with the selling stockholders to sell a
specified number of such shares at a stipulated price per share;

a combination of any such methods of sale;

through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging
transactions, whether through an options exchange or otherwise;
or

any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.

The selling stockholders may also sell shares under Rule 144 under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), if available, rather
than under this prospectus.

Broker-dealers engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for
other brokers-dealers to participate in sales. Broker-dealers may receive
commissions or discounts from the selling stockholders (or, if any broker-dealer
acts as agent for the purchaser of shares, from the purchaser) in amounts to be
negotiated. Each selling stockholder does not expect these commissions and
discounts relating to its sales of shares to exceed what is customary in the
types of transactions involved.

In connection with the sale of our Common Stock or interests therein,
the selling stockholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers
or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the
Common Stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The selling
stockholders may also sell shares of our Common Stock short and deliver these
securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the Common
Stock to broker-dealers that in turn may sell these securities. The selling
stockholders may also enter into option or other transactions with
broker-dealers or other financial institutions or the creation of one or more
derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other
financial institution of shares offered by this prospectus, which shares such
broker—-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this
prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction).

The selling stockholders and any broker-dealers or agents that are
involved in selling the shares may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the
meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. In such event, any
commissions received by such broker-dealers or agents and any profit on the
resale of the shares purchased by them may be deemed to be underwriting
commissions or discounts under the Securities Act.
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The Company is required to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by
the Company incident to the registration of the shares. The Company has agreed
to indemnify the selling stockholders against certain losses, claims, damages
and liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

Because selling stockholders may be deemed to be "underwriters" within
the meaning of the Securities Act, they will be subject to the prospectus
delivery requirements of the Securities Act. In addition, any securities covered
by this prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the
Securities Act may be sold under Rule 144 rather than under this prospectus.
Each selling stockholder has represented to us that it has not entered into any
agreements, understandings or arrangements, directly or indirectly, with any
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underwriter, broker-dealer or other person regarding the sale or other
distribution of the shares of Common Stock to be sold pursuant to this
prospectus. There is no underwriter or coordinating broker acting in connection
with the proposed sale of the resale shares by the selling stockholders.

Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any
person engaged in the distribution of the shares to be sold pursuant to this
prospectus may not simultaneously engage in market making activities with
respect to our Common Stock for a period of two business days prior to the
commencement of the distribution. In addition, the selling stockholders will be
subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which may limit the timing of
purchases and sales of shares of our Common Stock by the selling stockholders or
any other person. We have advised the selling stockholders that the
anti-manipulation rules of Regulation M under the Exchange Act may apply to
sales of shares in the market and to the activities of the selling stockholders
and their affiliates. We will make copies of this prospectus available to the
selling stockholders for the purpose of satisfying the prospectus delivery
requirements of the Securities Act. The selling stockholders may indemnify any
broker-dealer that participates in transactions involving the sale of the shares
against certain liabilities, including liabilities arising under the Securities
Act.

In order to comply with the securities laws of certain states, if
applicable, the shares must be sold in such jurisdictions only through
registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in certain states the
shares may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in
the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification
requirement is available and is complied with.

At the time a particular offer of shares is made, if required, a
prospectus supplement will be distributed that will set forth the number of
shares being offered and the terms of the offering, including the name of any
underwriter, dealer or agent, the purchase price paid by any underwriter, any
discount, commission and other item constituting compensation, any discount,
commission or concession allowed or reallowed or paid to any dealer, and the
proposed selling price to the public.

Certain of the selling stockholders may be affiliates of a
broker-dealer. Each of the selling stockholders has represented to us that it
purchased the securities to be resold pursuant to this prospectus in the
ordinary course of business and, at the time of the purchase of such securities,
had no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to
distribute such securities. We are not aware of any plans, arrangements or
undertakings between the selling stockholders and any underwriter, broker-dealer
or agent regarding the sale of the Common Stock covered by this prospectus by
the selling stockholders.

EXPERTS

The financial statements incorporated in this prospectus by reference
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 have been
so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said
firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of Common Stock offered hereby will be
passed upon by Dechert LLP, our special corporate counsel.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the information reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act and we file reports, proxy statements and other information with
the SEC. Our SEC filings and the registration statement and the exhibits and
schedules thereto may be inspected and copied at the SEC's Public Reference
Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain
information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov)
that contains our SEC filings.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference certain of our
publicly-filed documents into this prospectus, which means that information
included in these documents is considered part of this prospectus. We
incorporate by reference in this prospectus the information contained in the
following documents:

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005, filed with the SEC on February 28, 2006;

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2006, filed with the SEC on May 11, 2006;

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2006, filed with the SEC on August 4, 2006;

our Proxy Statement, dated April 6, 2006, filed with the SEC on
April 6, 2006 in connection with our Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held on May 19, 2006;

our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 21,
2006;

our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on June 7,
2006;

our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on August 2,
2006;

our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on August 14,
2006;

the description of our common stock in our registration statement
on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on April 22, 1997, including any
amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such
description; and

all documents that we subsequently file with the SEC under
Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15 of the Exchange Act until all of
the securities that may be offered with this prospectus are sold.

We will furnish without charge to you, on written or oral request, a
copy of any or all of the documents incorporated by reference, other than the
exhibits to those documents. You may obtain copies of those documents from us,
free of cost, by writing or telephoning us at Bluefly, Inc., 42 West 39th
Street, New York, New York 10018, Attention: Secretary, Telephone: (212)
944-8000.

Information that we file later with the SEC and that is incorporated by
reference in this prospectus will automatically update information contained in
this prospectus or that was previously incorporated by reference into this

prospectus.
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INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS
ITEM 14. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION

The Registrant will pay all expenses incident to the offering and sale
to the public of the shares being registered other than any commissions and
discounts of underwriters, dealers or agents and any transfer taxes. Such
expenses are set forth in the following table. All of the amounts shown are
estimates except the SEC registration fee.

SEC registration fee $ 11,559
Legal fees and expenses $ 17,500
Accounting fees and expenses $ 15,000
Miscellaneous expenses $ 6,000
Total $ 50,059

ITEM 15. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The indemnification of officers and directors of the Registrant is
governed by Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
(the "DGCL") and the Certificate of Incorporation (the "Charter") and By-Laws
(the "By-laws") of the Registrant. Subsection (a) of DGCL Section 145 empowers a
corporation to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be
made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding,
whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action
by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that the person is
or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was
serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding if the person acted in good
faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to
the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action
or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the person's conduct was
unlawful.

Subsection (b) of DGCL Section 145 empowers a corporation to indemnify
any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the
corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that the
person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or
is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, Jjoint wventure, trust or
other enterprise against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the defense or settlement
of such action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the
person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any
claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be
liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the Delaware Court
of Chancery or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in
view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably
entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such
other court shall deem proper.

DGCL Section 145 further provides that to the extent that a present or
former director or officer is successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the
defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in subsections (a) and (b)
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of Section 145, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such person
shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. In all cases in
which indemnification is permitted under subsections (a) and (b) of Section 145
(unless ordered by a court), it shall be made by the corporation only as
authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the
present or former director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the
circumstances because the applicable standard of conduct has been met by the
party to be indemnified. Such determination must be made, with respect to a
person who is a director or officer at the time of such determination, (1) by a
majority vote of the directors who are
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not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, even though less than a quorum,
or (2) by a committee of such directors designated by majority wvote of such
directors, even though less than a quorum, or (3) if there are no such
directors, or if such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a
written opinion, or (4) by the stockholders.

The statute authorizes the corporation to pay expenses incurred by an
officer or director in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding upon
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the person to whom the advance will
be made, to repay the advances if it shall ultimately be determined that he was
not entitled to indemnification. DGCL Section 145 also provides that
indemnification and advancement of expenses permitted thereunder are not to be
exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or
advancement of expenses may be entitled under any By-law, agreement, vote of
stockholders or disinterested directors, or otherwise. DGCL Section 145 also
authorizes the corporation to purchase and maintain liability insurance on
behalf of its directors, officers, employees and agents regardless of whether
the corporation would have the statutory power to indemnify such persons against
the liabilities insured.

The Charter provides that no director of the Registrant shall be
personally liable to the Registrant or its stockholders for monetary damages for
breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that this provision shall not
eliminate or limit the liability of a director (a) for any breach of such
person's duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its stockholders, (b) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law, (c) under section 174 of the DGCL or (d) for any transaction
from which the director derived any improper personal benefits.

The Charter and By-laws also provide that, to the extent not prohibited
by law, the Registrant shall indemnify any person who is or was made, or
threatened to be made, a party to any threatened, pending or completed action,
suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative,
including, without limitation, an action by or in the right of the Registrant to
procure a judgment in its favor, by reason of the fact that such person, or a
person of whom such person is the legal representative, is or was a director or
officer of the Registrant, or, at the request of the Registrant, is or was
serving as a director or officer of any other corporation or in a capacity with
comparable authority or responsibilities for any partnership, joint venture,
trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, against any judgments, fines,
penalties, excise taxes, amounts paid in settlement and costs, charges and
expenses (including attorneys' fees, disbursements and other charges).

Additionally, the Charter and By-laws provide that the Registrant shall
reimburse or advance to any director or officer entitled to indemnification the
funds necessary for payment of expenses, including attorneys' fees and
disbursements, incurred in connection with any Proceeding, in advance of the
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final disposition of such Proceeding and that such any such advancement shall,
if required by the DGCL, be paid by the Registrant only upon receipt by the
Registrant of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such director or officer to
repay any amount so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final
judicial decision from which there is no further right of appeal that such
director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses.

The Charter and By-laws authorize the Registrant to purchase and
maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer
of the Registrant, or is or was serving at the request of the Registrant as a
director or officer of any other entity, against any liability asserted against
such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of
such person's status as such, whether or not the Registrant would have the power
to indemnify such person against such liability under applicable provisions of
the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the by-laws of the Registrant or
under Section 145 of the DGCL or any other provision of law.

I1-2
ITEM 16. EXHIBITS
5.1 Opinion of Dechert LLP
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
accounting firm
23.2 Consent of Counsel (included as Exhibit 5.1)
24.1 Power of Attorney (included in signature page)

ITEM 17. UNDERTAKINGS
The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

1. To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being
made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:

i. To include any prospectus required by Section 10 (a) (3)
of the Securities Act of 1933;

ii. To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising
after the effective date of the registration statement
(or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof)
which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a
fundamental change in the information set forth in the
registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered
(1f the total dollar value of securities offered would
not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation
from the low or high end of the estimated maximum
offering range may be reflected in the form of
prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule
424 (b) 1if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and
price represent no more than 20% change in the maximum
aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation
of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration
statement.

iii. To include any material information with respect to the

plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such
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information in the registration statement;

Provided however, that paragraphs (1) (i), (1) (ii) and (1) (iii)
of this section do not apply if the registration statement is
on Form S-3 or Form F-3 and the information required to be
included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is
contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission
by the Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by
reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a
form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424 (b) that is part
of the registration statement.

That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the
Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall
be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the
securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at
that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment
any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.

That, for the purpose of determining liability under the
Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:

i. If the Registrant is relying on Rule 430B:
II-3
A. Each prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule

424 (b) (3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration
statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed
part of and included in the registration statement; and

B. Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule
424 (b) (2), (b) (5), or (b) (7) as part of a registration
statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an
offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a) (1) (i), (vii), or
(x) for the purpose of providing the information
required by Section 10 (a) of the Securities Act of 1933
shall be deemed to be part of and included in the
registration statement as of the earlier of the date
such form of prospectus is first used after
effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale
of securities in the offering described in the
prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability
purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that
date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a
new effective date of the registration statement
relating to the securities in the registration statement
to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of
such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however,
that no statement made in a registration statement or
prospectus that is part of the registration statement or
made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated
by reference into the registration statement or
prospectus that is part of the registration statement
will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale
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prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any
statement that was made in the registration statement or
prospectus that was part of the registration statement
or made in any such document immediately prior to such
effective date; or

ii. If the Registrant is subject to Rule 430C, each
prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424 (b) as part of a
registration statement relating to an offering, other
than registration statements relying on Rule 430B or
other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A,
shall be deemed to be part of and included in the
registration statement as of the date it is first used
after effectiveness. Provided, however, that no
statement made in a registration statement or prospectus
that is part of the registration statement or made in a
document incorporated or deemed incorporated by
reference into the registration statement or prospectus
that is part of the registration statement will, as to a
purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such
first use, supersede or modify any statement that was
made in the registration statement or prospectus that
was part of the registration statement or made in any
such document immediately prior to such date of first
use.

5. That, for the purpose of determining liability of the Registrant
under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial
distribution of the securities: The undersigned Registrant
undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the
undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement,
regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities
to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such
purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the
undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will
be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

i. Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the
undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required
to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;

ii. Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering
prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant
or used or referred to by the undersigned Registrant;

iii. The portion of any other free writing prospectus
relating to the offering containing material information
about the undersigned Registrant or its securities
provided by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant;
and

iv. Any other communication that is an offer in the offering
made by the undersigned Registrant to the purchaser.

II-4

The undersigned Registrant hereby further undertakes that, for the
purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each
filing of the Registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference
in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration
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statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities
Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of
the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the
Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification
is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is,
therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against
such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred
or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the
successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being
registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter
has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the
final adjudication of such issue.

II-5

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the
Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all
of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on August 24, 2006.

BLUEFLY, INC.

By: /s/ Melissa Payner-Gregor
Melissa Payner-Gregor
Chief Executive Officer and President

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature
appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Melissa Payner-Gregor and Patrick
C. Barry, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents
with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name,
place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) and additions to this Registration
Statement on Form S-3, and any subsequent registration statements pursuant to
Rule 462 (b) under the Securities Act of 1933, and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and hereby grants to such attorneys-in-fact
and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each
and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or his substitute or
substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this

registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
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/s/ Melissa Payner—-Gregor Chief Executive Officer, President August 24, 2006
———————————————————————————————— and Director (Principal Executive

Melissa Payner-Gregor Officer)

/s/ Patrick C. Barry Chief Financial Officer and Chief August 24, 2006
———————————————————————————————— Operating Officer (Principal

Patrick C. Barry Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Alan Kane Chairman of the Board August 24, 2006

Alan Kane

/s/ Barry Erdos Director August 24, 2006

Barry Erdos

/s/ Christopher G. McCann Director August 24, 2006

Christopher G. McCann

/s/ Martin Miller Director August 24, 2006

Martin Miller

/s/ Neal Moszkowski Director August 24, 2006

Neal Moszkowski

/s/ David Wassong Director August 24, 2006

David Wassong

/s/ Ann Jackson Director August 24, 2006

Ann Jackson

I1-6
SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ Riad Abrahams Director August 24, 2006
Riad Abrahams
/s/ Michael Gross Director August 24, 2006
Michael Gross
I1-7
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Opinion of Dechert LLP

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm

Consent of Counsel (included as Exhibit 5.1)

Power of Attorney (included in signature page)
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$
127,137

$
182,246

$
379,619

$
587,801
Rental revenues

30,990

30,920

92,724

92,096
Financing revenues

3,156

3,152

10,223

11,394
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Total segment revenues

161,283

216,318

482,566

691,291

Segment Expenses:

Franchise and restaurant expenses

44,091

95,689

130,875

313,424
Rental expenses

24,149

24,237

72,953

73,075

Financing expenses
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15

245

1,586
Total segment expenses

68,240

119,941

204,073

388,085
Gross segment profit

93,043

96,377

278,493

303,206
General and administrative expenses

35,331

48,737

105,004

125,608
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Interest expense

24,979

28,896

75,230

88,767
Amortization of intangible assets

3,072

3,072

9,212

9,222

Closure and impairment charges
(392

)

420

770

1,264

Loss on extinguishment of debt

2,306

36

4,917
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Debt modification costs

1,296

Gain on disposition of assets

(72
)

(73,650
)

(326
)

(89,642
)

Income before income taxes

30,125

86,596

87,271

163,070
Income tax provision

(11,395
)

(26,023
)

(33,365
)
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(54,215
)

Net income

18,730

60,573

53,906

108,855

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Adjustment to unrealized loss on available-for-sale investments

140
Foreign currency translation adjustment

3

Total comprehensive income
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18,733

60,578

53,901
$
108,999

Net income available to common stockholders:

Net income

$
18,730

60,573

53,906

$

108,855

Less: Net income allocated to unvested participating restricted stock

(296
)

(1,187
)
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(925
)

(2,477
)

Less: Accretion of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

(688

(2,033
)

Net income available to common stockholders

$
18,434

58,698

52,981
$
104,345

Net income available to common stockholders per share:

Basic

0.98

39



3.26

2.80

5.84

Diluted

0.97

5.66

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic

18,831

18,006

18,898
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17,859
Diluted

19,085

18,924

19,166

18,801
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Dividends declared per common share

$
0.75

&

2.25

&

Dividends paid per common share

$
0.75

&+

41



Edgar Filing: BLUEFLY INC - Form S-3

2.25

&

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $53,906 $108,855
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 26,516 30,756
Non-cash interest expense 4,635 4,547
Loss on extinguishment of debt 36 4,917
Closure and impairment charges 1,166 991
Deferred income taxes (16,007 ) (20,361 )
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense 7,081 8,799
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 3,001 6,334
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (1,985 ) (4,757 )
Gain on disposition of assets (326 ) (89,642 )
Other 791 (1,768 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables 41,698 41,422
Current income tax receivables and payables 7,232 12,512
Other current assets 16,054 7,414
Accounts payable 2,650 2,080
Accrued employee compensation and benefits (4,372 ) (6,490 )
Gift card liability (68,493 ) (62,841 )
Other accrued expenses 29,231 25,298
Cash flows provided by operating activities 102,814 68,066
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment (4,547 ) (13,477 )
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment and assets held for sale — 137,449
Principal receipts from notes, equipment contracts and other long-term receivables 10,254 10,276
Other 282 964
Cash flows provided by investing activities 5,989 135,212
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities — 50,000
Repayments under revolving credit facilities — (50,000 )
Repayment of long-term debt (including premiums) (2,400 ) (184,237 )
Payment of debt modification costs (1,296 ) —
Principal payments on capital lease and financing obligations (7,515 ) (8,246 )
Repurchase of DineEquity common stock (24,663 ) —
Dividends paid on common stock (43,170 ) —
Repurchase of restricted stock (3,209 ) (1,690 )
Proceeds from stock options exercised 5,585 5,443
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 1,985 4,757
Change in restricted cash (3,122 ) (8,158 )
Cash flows used in financing activities (77,805 ) (192,131 )
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Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosures:

Interest paid in cash

Income taxes paid in cash

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4

30,998
64,537
$95,535

$58,751
$39,084

11,147
60,691
$71,838

$77,758
$58,339
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. General

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of DineEquity, Inc. (the “Company”) have been
prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not

include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion

of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation
have been included. The operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative
of the results that may be expected for the twelve months ending December 31, 2013.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 has been derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements at that date, but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

2. Basis of Presentation

The Company’s fiscal quarters end on the Sunday closest to the last day of each quarter. For convenience, the fiscal
quarters of each year are reported as ending on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31. The first, second
and third quarters of fiscal 2013 ended on March 31, 2013, June 30, 2013 and September 29, 2013, respectively; the
first, second and third quarters of fiscal 2012 ended on April 1, 2012, July 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012,
respectively.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries that are
consolidated in accordance with U.S. GAAP. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company’s management to make
assumptions and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to
provisions for doubtful accounts, legal contingencies, income taxes, long-lived assets, goodwill and intangible assets.
The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Accounting Policies
Accounting Standards Adopted in the Current Fiscal Year

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No.
2012-02, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other: Testing Indefinite Lived Intangibles for Impairment (“ASU 2012-02”). ASU
2012-02 allows an entity the option to first assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is necessary to perform
a quantitative impairment test on indefinite-lived intangibles. An entity electing to perform a qualitative assessment is
no longer required to calculate the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset unless the entity determines, based
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on the qualitative assessment, that it is more likely than not that the asset is impaired. The adoption of ASU 2012-02
as of January 1, 2013 did not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2013-02”). The amendments in ASU 2013-02 do not change the current requirements
for reporting net income or other comprehensive income. However, the amendments require disclosure of amounts
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income in their entirety, by component, on the face of the
statement of operations or in the notes thereto. Amounts that are not required to be reclassified in their entirety to net
income must be cross-referenced to other disclosures that provide additional detail. The adoption of ASU 2013-02 as
of January 1, 2013 did not have any impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements or disclosures because
the Company had no material amount of reclassifications.
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Newly Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date (“ASU 2013-04"). The
amendments in ASU 2013-04 require an entity to measure obligations resulting from joint and several liability
arrangements as the amount the entity agreed to pay on the basis of the arrangement among its co-obligors plus the
amount an entity expects to pay on behalf of co-obligors. ASU 2013-04 also requires an entity to disclose the nature,
amount and other information about each obligation or group of similar obligations. The Company will be required to
adopt ASU 2013-04 effective January 1, 2014, and is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, on its
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes - Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When
a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (“ASU 2013-11”). ASU
2013-11 provides guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit, as either a
reduction of a deferred tax asset or as a liability, when a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or a tax
credit carryforward exists. ASU 2013-11 may be applied on a retrospective basis, and early adoption is permitted. The
Company will be required to adopt ASU 2013-11 effective January 1, 2014, and is currently evaluating the potential
impact, if any, on its consolidated financial statements.

The Company reviewed all other newly issued accounting pronouncements and concluded that they either are not
applicable to the Company or are not expected to have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial
statements as a result of future adoption.

4. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following components:
September 30, December 31,

2013 2012

(In millions)
Senior Secured Credit Facility, due October 2017, at a variable interest rate of 3.75% $469.6 $472.0
as of September 30, 2013 and 4.25% as of December 31, 2012 ’ )
Senior Notes due October 2018, at a fixed rate of 9.5% 760.8 760.8
Discount (20.7 ) (233 )
Total long-term debt 1,209.7 1,209.5
Less current maturities 4.7 ) (7.4 )
Long-term debt, less current maturities $1,205.0 $1,202.1

For a description of the respective instruments, refer to Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Debt Modification Costs

On February 4, 2013, the Company entered into Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment No. 2”) to the Credit Agreement
dated October 8, 2010. For a description of Amendment No. 2, refer to Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012. Fees of
$1.3 million paid to third parties in connection with Amendment No. 2 were included as “Debt modification costs” in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.
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Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized a loss on extinguishment of

debt as follows:
Face Amount

Quarter Ended Instrument Repaid/Retired Repaid/Retire dCash Paid Loss ()
(In millions)

March 2013 Term Loans $1.2 $1.2 $0.0

June 2013 Term Loans 1.2 1.2 0.0
Total 2013 $2.4 $24 $0.0

March 2012 Term Loans $70.5 $70.5 $1.9

March 2012 Senior Notes 5.0 5.5 0.7

September 2012 Term Loans 108.2 108.2 2.3
Total 2012 $183.7 $184.2 $4.9

() Including write-off of the discount and deferred financing costs related to the debt retired.
Compliance with Covenants and Restrictions

The Company was in compliance with all the covenants and restrictions related to its Senior Secured Credit Facility
and Senior Notes as of September 30, 2013.

5. Income Taxes

The effective tax rate was 38.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 as compared to 33.2% for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012. The effective tax rate in 2012 was lower primarily due to a discrete $6.3 million
state benefit related to a reduction in state deferred taxes as a result of the refranchising of Applebee's
company-operated restaurants and sale of related restaurant assets that was completed in 2012. Additionally, income
tax credits, primarily FICA tip and other compensation-related tax credits, were higher in 2012 because Applebee’s
had more company-operated restaurants during that year prior to completion of the refranchisings.

The total gross unrecognized tax benefit as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $2.0 million and $6.7
million, respectively, excluding interest, penalties and related tax benefits. The decrease of $4.7 million is primarily
related to recent settlements with taxing authorities. The Company estimates the unrecognized tax benefits may
decrease over the upcoming 12 months by an amount up to $0.7 million related to settlements with taxing authorities
and the lapse of statutes of limitations. For the remaining liability, due to the uncertainties related to these tax matters,
the Company is unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate when cash settlement with a taxing authority will occur.

As of September 30, 2013, the accrued interest and penalties were $2.6 million and $0.1 million, respectively,
excluding any related income tax benefits. As of December 31, 2012, accrued interest and penalties were $1.4 million
and $0.2 million, respectively, excluding any related income tax benefits. The increase of $1.2 million of accrued
interest is primarily related to an increase in unrecognized tax benefits as a result of recent audits by taxing authorities.
The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as a component of the
income tax provision recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.
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The Company files federal income tax returns and the Company or one of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in
various state and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal, state or
non-United States tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2008. In the second quarter of 2013, the

Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) issued a Revenue Agent’s Report (“RAR”) related to its examination of the Company’s
U.S federal income tax return for the tax years 2008 to 2010. The Company disagrees with a portion of the proposed
assessments and has contested them through the IRS administrative appeals procedures. We anticipate the appeals
process to continue into 2014. The Company continues to believe that adequate reserves have been provided relating

to all matters contained in the tax periods open to examination.
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6. Stock-Based Compensation

From time to time, the Company has granted nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, cash-settled and

stock-settled restricted stock units and performance units to officers, other employees and non-employee directors of
the Company. Currently, the Company is authorized to grant nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, cash-settled and stock-settled restricted stock units and performance units to officers, other employees
and nonemployee directors under the DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”). The 2011 Plan was
approved by stockholders on May 17, 2011 and permits the issuance of up to 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The 2011 Plan will expire in May 2021.

The nonqualified stock options generally vest ratably over a three-year period in one-third increments and have a term
of ten years from the grant date. Option exercise prices equal the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant. Restricted stock and restricted stock units are issued at no cost to the
holder and vest over terms determined by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors,
generally three years from the grant date.

The following table summarizes the components of the Company’s stock-based compensation expense included in
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated financial statements:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

(In millions)
Total stock-based compensation:

Equity classified award expense $1.2 $2.2 $7.1 $8.8
Liability classified award (credit) expense (0.8 ) 1.9 (0.9 ) 2.4

Total pretax stock-based compensation expense 0.4 4.1 6.2 11.2

Tax benefit 0.2 ) (1.6 ) 24 ) (4.3 )
Total stock-based compensation expense, net of tax $0.2 $2.5 $3.8 $6.9

As of September 30, 2013, total unrecognized compensation cost of $9.1 million related to restricted stock and
restricted stock units and $5.1 million related to stock options is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 1.8 years for restricted stock and restricted stock units and 1.7 years for stock options.

Equity Classified Awards - Stock Options
The estimated fair value of the stock options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was

calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following summarizes the assumptions used in the
Black-Scholes model:

Risk-free interest rate 0.78 %
Weighted average historical volatility 83.4 %
Dividend yield 4.15 %
Expected years until exercise 4.6
Forfeitures 11.0 %
Weighted average fair value of options granted $36.00
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Option balances as of September 30, 2013 and activity related to stock options for the nine months ended September

30, 2013 were as follows:

Weighted
Shares Avera.ge

Exercise

Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 958,246  $39.67
Granted 81,328 $72.28
Exercised (153,454) $36.40
Forfeited (39,243 ) $55.78
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 846,877  $42.65
Vested at September 30, 2013 and Expected to Vest 824,671 $42.14
Exercisable at September 30, 2013 637,782  $37.31

Welgl.lte.d Average Aggregate
Remaining .
Intrinsic

Contractual Term

. Value
(in Years)
6.24 $21,878,000
6.17 $21,683,000
5.49 $19,650,000

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (the difference between the
closing stock price of the Company’s common stock on the last trading day of the third quarter of 2013 and the
exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options on September 30, 2013. The aggregate intrinsic value will
change based on the fair market value of the Company’s common stock and the number of in-the-money options.

Equity Classified Awards - Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Outstanding balances as of September 30, 2013 and activity related to restricted stock and restricted stock units for the

nine months ended September 30, 2013 were as follows:

Restricted
Stock
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 346,563
Granted 88,606
Conversion of cash-settled restricted stock units —
Released (112,625 )
Forfeited (53,551 )
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 268,993
9

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
$44.74
$72.16
$30.09
$54.76
$57.84

Restricted
Stock Units

33,242
15,387
37,184
(39,000

46,813

)

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
$41.19
$72.04
$72.28
$54.66

$64.57
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Liability Classified Awards - Restricted Stock Units
Weighted
Restricted Average
Stock Units  Grant Date

Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 37,184 $66.13

Conversion to stock-settled restricted stock units (37,184 ) $72.28
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 — —

The Company previously had issued shares of cash-settled restricted stock units to members of the Board of Directors.
Originally these instruments were expected to be settled in cash and were recorded as liabilities based on the closing
price of the Company’s common stock as of each period end. In February 2013, it was determined that, pursuant to the
terms of the Plan, these restricted stock units would be settled in shares of common stock and all outstanding restricted
stock units were converted to equity classified awards. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, $0.3
million and $0.6 million, respectively, were included in pretax stock-based compensation expense for the cash-settled
restricted stock units. At December 31, 2012, liabilities of $2.4 million were included as other accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Liability Classified Awards - Long-Term Incentive Awards

The Company has granted cash long-term incentive awards (“LTIP awards”) to certain employees. Annual LTIP awards
vest over a three-year period and are determined using a multiplier from 0% to 200% of the target award based on the
total shareholder return of DineEquity, Inc. common stock compared to the total shareholder returns of a peer group of
companies. Although LTIP awards are both denominated and paid only in cash, because the multiplier is based on the
price of the Company's common stock, the awards are considered stock-based compensation in accordance with U.S.
GAAP and are liability classified awards. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, a credit of $1.2
million and an expense of $1.8 million, respectively, were included in total stock-based compensation expense related
to the LTIP awards. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, liabilities of $1.1 million and $4.5 million,
respectively, related to LTIP awards were included as accrued employee compensation and benefits in the
consolidated balance sheets.

7. Segments

The Company has four reporting segments: franchise operations, company restaurant operations, rental operations and
financing operations.

As of September 30, 2013, the franchise operations segment consisted of (i) 1,987 restaurants operated by Applebee’s
franchisees in the United States, one U.S. territory and 17 countries outside the United States; and (ii) 1,589
restaurants operated by IHOP franchisees and area licensees in the United States, two U.S. territories and seven
countries outside the United States. Franchise operations revenue consists primarily of franchise royalty revenues,
sales of proprietary products to franchisees (primarily pancake and waffle dry mixes for the IHOP restaurants), [HOP
franchise advertising fees and the portion of the franchise fees allocated to IHOP and Applebee's intellectual property.
Franchise operations expenses include IHOP advertising expenses, the cost of IHOP proprietary products and IHOP
and Applebee's pre-opening training expenses and other franchise-related costs.
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At September 30, 2013, the company restaurant operations segment consisted of 23 Applebee’s company-operated
restaurants, 10 IHOP company-operated restaurants and three IHOP restaurants reacquired from franchisees and
operated by IHOP on a temporary basis until refranchised, all of which are located in the United States. Company
restaurant sales are retail sales at company-operated restaurants. Company restaurant expenses are operating expenses
at company-operated restaurants and include food, labor, utilities, rent and other restaurant operating costs.

10
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Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from direct financing leases.
Rental operations expenses are costs of operating leases and interest expense from capital leases on
franchisee-operated restaurants.

Financing operations revenue primarily consists of interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment
leases and sales of equipment associated with refranchised IHOP restaurants. Financing expenses are primarily the
cost of restaurant equipment associated with refranchised IHOP restaurants.

Information on segments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

(In millions)
Revenues from External Customers

Franchise operations $111.7 $102.6 $331.6 $313.5
Company restaurants 15.4 79.6 48.1 274.3
Rental operations 31.0 30.9 92.7 92.1
Financing operations 3.2 3.2 10.2 11.4
Total $161.3 $216.3 $482.6 $691.3
Interest Expense

Company restaurants $0.1 $0.1 $0.3 $0.3
Rental operations 3.8 4.2 12.0 12.8
Corporate 25.0 28.9 75.2 88.8
Total $28.9 $33.2 $87.5 $101.9
Depreciation and amortization

Franchise operations $2.7 $2.5 $8.1 $7.4
Company restaurants 0.5 1.6 1.6 6.4
Rental operations 33 34 10.1 10.3
Corporate 24 2.3 6.7 6.7
Total $8.9 $9.8 $26.5 $30.8
Income (loss) before income taxes

Franchise operations $83.3 $75.5 $248.8 $232.4
Company restaurants 0.3 ) 11.0 (0.1 ) 42.0
Rental operations 6.8 6.7 19.8 19.0
Financing operations 3.2 3.2 10.0 9.8
Corporate (62.9 ) (9.8 ) (191.2 ) (140.1 )
Total $30.1 $86.6 $87.3 $163.1
11
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8. Net Income per Share

The computation of the Company's basic and diluted net income per share for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

(In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator for basic and dilutive income per common share:

Net income $18,730 $60,573 $53,906 $108,855
igscsk: Net income allocated to unvested participating restricted (296 ) (1187 ) (925 ) (2477 )
Less: Accretion of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock — (688 ) — (2,033 )
Net income available to common stockholders - basic 18,434 58,698 52,981 104,345
Effect of unvested participating restricted stock in two-class

. 1 57 3 121
calculation
Accretion of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock — 688 — 2,033
Net income available to common stockholders - diluted $18,435 $59,443 $52,984 $106,499
Denominator:
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock - basic 18,831 18,006 18,898 17,859
Dilutive effect of:
Stock options 254 246 268 270
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock — 672 — 672
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock - diluted 19,085 18,924 19,166 18,801
Net income per common share:
Basic $0.98 $3.26 $2.80 $5.84
Diluted $0.97 $3.14 $2.76 $5.66

All Series B Convertible Preferred Stock was converted into DineEquity, Inc. common stock in November, 2012.

9. Fair Value Measurements

The Company does not have a material amount of financial instruments, non-financial assets or non-financial
liabilities that are required under U.S. GAAP to be measured on a recurring basis at fair value. The Company has
elected to not use the fair value measurement option, as permitted under U.S. GAAP, for any assets or liabilities for
which fair value measurement is not presently required.

The Company believes the fair values of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and the current
portion of long-term debt approximate the carrying amounts due to their short duration.

The fair values of non-current financial liabilities at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, determined based
on Level 2 inputs, were as follows:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount
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(In millions)
Long-term debt, less current maturities $1,205.0 $1,311.6

12

$1,202.1

$1,334.2
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10. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation, Claims and Disputes

The Company is subject to various lawsuits, administrative proceedings, audits, and claims arising in the ordinary
course of business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial damages. The Company
is required under U.S. GAAP to record an accrual for litigation loss contingencies that are both probable and
reasonably estimable. Legal fees and expenses associated with the defense of all of the Company's litigation are
expensed as such fees and expenses are incurred. Management regularly assesses the Company's insurance coverage,
analyzes litigation information with the Company's attorneys and evaluates the Company's loss experience in
connection with pending legal proceedings. While the Company does not presently believe that any of the legal
proceedings to which it is currently a party will ultimately have a material adverse impact on the Company, there can
be no assurance that the Company will prevail in all the proceedings the Company is party to, or that the Company
will not incur material losses from them.

Lease Guarantees

In connection with the sale of Applebee’s restaurants or previous brands to franchisees and other parties, the Company
has, in certain cases, guaranteed or had potential continuing liability for lease payments totaling $431.9 million as of
September 30, 2013. This amount represents the maximum potential liability for future payments under these leases.
These leases have been assigned to the buyers and expire at the end of the respective lease terms, which range from
2013 through 2048. In the event of default, the indemnity and default clauses in the sale or assignment agreements
govern the Company's ability to pursue and recover damages incurred. No material liabilities have been recorded as
of September 30, 2013.

Contingencies

In February 2013, an IHOP franchisee and its affiliated entities which owned and operated 19 restaurants located in
the states of Illinois, Wisconsin and Missouri filed for bankruptcy protection. As a result of an order issued by the
bankruptcy court, two of the 19 restaurants were returned to the Company in the third quarter of 2013. A non-cash
charge of $0.5 million was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income against deferred rental
revenue associated with the leases for those two restaurants. During the third quarter of 2013, the Company received
favorable rulings from the bankruptcy court which, if upheld, would allow the Company to transfer the remaining 17
restaurants to another franchisee. These rulings have been appealed by the current franchisee and are presently subject
to a stay, pursuant to which the current franchisee is operating these restaurants only on a day-to-day basis and is
continuing to make payments to the Company pursuant to the terms of the original franchise agreements. Accordingly,
the Company is unable to determine the ultimate outcome of the bankruptcy proceedings at this time.

In an unrelated matter, in April 2013, an Applebee's franchisee which owned and operated 33 restaurants located in
[linois filed for bankruptcy protection. Pursuant to the bidding procedures approved by the bankruptcy court, 15 of
the restaurants were sold in June 2013 to an affiliate of an existing franchisee and operated without interruption during
the transition of ownership. The remaining 18 restaurants were closed in June 2013. We received approximately $3.8
million in termination payments and other fees in connection with the closure of these restaurants. We also have
entered into a development agreement with the franchisee that acquired the 15 restaurants to open additional
restaurants in Illinois in the future.

59



Edgar Filing: BLUEFLY INC - Form S-3

11. Consolidating Financial Information

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries have guaranteed the Company's obligations under the Senior Secured Credit
Facility. The following presents the condensed consolidating financial information separately for: (i) the parent
Company, the issuer of the guaranteed obligations; (ii) the guarantor subsidiaries, on a combined basis, as specified in
the Credit Agreement; (iii) the non-guarantor subsidiaries, on a combined basis; (iv) consolidating eliminations and
reclassifications; and (v) DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Each guarantor subsidiary is 100% owned by the Company at the date of each balance sheet presented. The notes are
fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several basis by each guarantor subsidiary. Each entity in the
consolidating financial information follows the same accounting policies as described in the consolidated financial
statements.

13
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2013
(In millionsD)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany

Total current assets

Long-term receivables

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Other assets, net

Investment in subsidiaries

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable

Accrued employee compensation and
benefits

Gift card liability

Other accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Financing obligations

Capital lease obligations

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from

Parent

$52.2
39
192.2
0.1
(436.8
(188.6

232

16.7
1,697.6
$1,548.9

$12.7
1.8

9.8

1.3
25.7
1,205.0

2.2

5.8
1,238.7
310.1
$1,548.9

Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.

14

Combined
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$42.5
91.2
50.6
23.6
432.3
640.2
201.1
257.2
697.5
797.0
92.2

$2,685.2

$—
31.5

8.2

93.2
255.6
388.5
51.9
115.4
347.2
92.2
995.2
1,690.0
$2,685.2

Combined Eliminations
Non-guarantor and
Subsidiaries  Reclassification
$0.8 $—

0.2 (8.0 )
— (188.6 )
1.4 —

4.4 —

6.8 (196.6 )
1.0 —

— (1,697.6 )
$7.38 $(1,8942 )
$— $ (8.0 )
(0.2 (188.6 )
(0.2 (196.6 )
(0.3

0.9

0.4 (196.6 )
7.4 (1,697.6 )
$7.8 $(1,8942 )

Consolidated

$95.5
87.3

54.1

24.8

261.8
201.1
281.4
697.5
797.1
108.9

$2,347.7

$4.7
33.3

18.1

93.2
68.0
217.3
1,205.0
51.9
115.4
349.2
98.9
2,037.7
310.0
$2,347.7
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012
(In millionsD)
Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Reclassification

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $9.9 $54.0 $0.6 $— $64.5
Receivables, net 2.8 133.7 0.1 (8.0 ) 128.6
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ~ 151.3 64.6 — (136.3 ) 79.5
Deferred income taxes (3.2 ) 24.1 0.8 — 21.8
Intercompany (394.9 ) 389.0 6.0 — —
Total current assets (234.1 ) 665.4 7.5 (144.3 ) 294.5
Long-term receivables — 212.3 — — 212.3
Property and equipment, net 23.2 270.2 0.9 — 294.4
Goodwill — 697.5 — — 697.5
Other intangible assets, net — 806.1 — — 806.1
Other assets, net 18.4 92.3 — — 110.7
Investment in subsidiaries 1,697.6 — — (1,697.6 ) —
Total assets $1,505.1 $2,743.8 $8.5 $(1,8419 ) $2,4154

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt $154 $— $— $ (8.0 ) $74
Accounts payable 1.4 29.3 0.1 — 30.8
Accrqed employee compensation and 9.4 13.0 . o 24
benefits

Gift card liability — 161.7 — — 161.7
Other accrued expenses 42.5 ) 223.8 0.5 (136.3 ) 45.5
Total current liabilities (16.3 ) 427.8 0.6 (144.3 ) 267.8
Long-term debt 1,202.1 — — — 1,202.1
Financing obligations — 52.0 — — 52.0
Capital lease obligations — 124.4 — — 124.4
Deferred income taxes 4.7 357.6 (0.2 ) — 362.2
Other liabilities 5.6 91.9 0.7 — 98.2
Total liabilities 1,196.1 1,053.8 1.1 (144.3 ) 2,106.6
Total stockholders’ equity 309.0 1,690.0 7.4 (1,697.6 ) 308.8
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,505.1 $2,743.8 $8.5 $(1,8419 ) $24154

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013
(In millionsD)

Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Reclassification

Revenues
Franchise and restaurant revenues $0.7 $126.1 $04 $— $127.1
Rental revenues — 31.0 — — 31.0
Financing revenues — 3.2 — — 32
Total revenue 0.7 160.3 04 — 161.3
Franchise and restaurant expenses 0.6 43.5 — — 44.1
Rental expenses — 241 — — 24.2
Financing expenses — — — — —
General and administrative expenses 9.0 26.0 0.3 — 35.3
Interest expense 24.6 0.3 — — 25.0
Amortization of intangible assets — 3.1 — — 3.1
Closure and impairment charges — 0.5 ) 0.1 — 0.4 )
Loss (gain) on disposition of assets — 0.1 (0.2 ) — (0.1 )
Intercompany dividend (39.2 ) — — 39.2 —
Income before income taxes 5.6 63.5 0.2 (39.2 ) 30.1
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 13.1 (24.5 ) — — (114 )
Net income $18.7 $39.0 $0.2 $(39.2 ) $18.7
Total comprehensive income $18.7 $39.0 $02 $(39.2 ) $18.7

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2012
(In millions(D)

Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Reclassification
Revenues
Franchise and restaurant revenues $0.7 $181.3 $0.3 $— $182.2
Rental revenues — 30.9 — — 30.9
Financing revenues — 3.2 — — 32
Total revenue 0.7 2154 0.3 — 216.3
Franchise and restaurant expenses 0.6 95.2 — — 95.7
Rental expenses — 242 — — 24.2
Financing expenses — — — — —
General and administrative expenses 15.8 32.5 0.4 — 48.7
Interest expense 26.5 24 — — 28.9
Amortization of intangible assets — 3.1 — — 3.1
Closure and impairment charges — 0.2 0.2 — 0.4
Gain on disposition of assets — (73.3 ) (0.4 ) — (73.7 )
Loss on extinguishment of debt 2.3 — — — 2.3
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Intercompany dividend (88.7 ) — — 88.7 —
Income before income taxes 44.2 131.1 0.1 (88.7 ) 86.6
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 16.5 42.5 ) — — (26.0
Net income $60.6 $88.6 $0.1 $ (88.7 ) $60.6
Total comprehensive income $60.6 $88.6 $0.1 $ (88.7 ) $60.6

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013
(In millionsD)

Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Reclassification

Revenues
Franchise and restaurant revenues $2.1 $376.5 $1.0 $— $379.6
Rental revenues — 92.7 — — 92.7
Financing revenues — 10.2 — — 10.2
Total revenue 2.1 479.4 1.0 — 482.6
Franchise and restaurant expenses 2.1 128.8 — — 130.9
Rental expenses — 72.9 — — 72.9
Financing expenses — 0.2 — — 0.2
General and administrative expenses 27.7 76.3 0.9 — 105.0
Interest expense 74.2 1.0 — — 75.2
Amortization of intangible assets — 9.2 — — 9.2
Closure and impairment charges — 0.5 0.2 — 0.8
Loss (gain) on disposition of assets — 0.4 (0.7 ) — (0.3 )
Debt modification costs 1.3 — — — 1.3
Intercompany dividend (116.6 ) — — 116.6 —
Income before income taxes 13.4 190.0 0.5 (116.6 ) 87.3
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 40.5 (73.9 ) — — (334 )
Net income $53.9 $116.1 $0.5 $(116.6 ) $53.9
Total comprehensive income $53.9 $116.1 $0.5 $(116.6 ) $53.9

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012
(In millionsD)

Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Reclassification
Revenues
Franchise and restaurant revenues $1.9 $585.1 $0.8 $— $587.8
Rental revenues — 92.1 — — 92.1
Financing revenues — 11.4 — — 114
Total revenue 1.9 688.6 0.8 — 691.3
Franchise and restaurant expenses 1.8 311.6 — — 3134
Rental expenses — 73.1 — — 73.1
Financing expenses — 1.6 — — 1.6
General and administrative expenses 28.9 95.2 1.4 — 125.6
Interest expense 80.9 7.9 — — 88.8
Amortization of intangible assets — 9.2 — — 9.2
Closure and impairment charges — 0.7 0.6 — 1.3
Gain on disposition of assets — (88.5 ) (1.2 ) — (89.6 )
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Loss on extinguishment of debt 4.9 — — — 4.9
Intercompany dividend 179.7 ) — — 179.7 —
Income before income taxes 65.1 277.8 — (179.7 ) 163.1
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 43.6 (97.9 ) — — (54.2
Net income $108.7 $179.9 $— $(179.7 ) $108.9
Total comprehensive income $108.8 $180.0 $— $(179.7 ) $109.0

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013
(In millionsD)

Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Reclassification
Ca§h.f‘lows provided by (used in) operating $(66.3 ) $169.4 $ (0.3 ) s $102.8
activities
Investing cash flows:
Additions to property and equipment (3.8 ) (0.7 ) — — (4.6 )
Prlnglpal receipts from long-term L 103 . o 103
receivables
Proceeds from sale of assets — — — — —
Other — 0.3 — — 0.3
Ca§h. ﬂows provided by (used in) investing 3.8 ) 9.8 o o 6.0
activities
Financing cash flows:
Payment of debt 2.4 ) (7.5 ) — — 9.9 )
Payment of debt modification costs (1.3 ) — — — (1.3 )
Repurchase of common stock (24.7 ) — — — 24.7 )
Dividends paid on common stock 43.2 ) — — — (43.2 )
Restricted cash — (3.1 ) — — (3.1 )
Other 4.2 0.1 — — 44
Intercompany transfers 179.7 (180.1 ) 04 — —
Cash. ﬂows provided by (used in) financing 112.4 (190.6 ) 0.4 o (77.8 )
activities
Net change 42.3 (11.4 ) 0.1 — 31.0
Beginning cash and equivalents 9.9 54.0 0.6 — 64.5
Ending cash and equivalents $52.2 $42.5 $0.8 $ — $95.5
(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.
Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012
(In millionsD)
Combined  Combined Eliminations
Parent Guarantor ~ Non-guarantor and Consolidated
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Reclassification
Cash. ﬂows provided by (used in) operating $(74.5 ) $142.3 $0.2 $_ $68.1
activities
Investing cash flows:
Additions to property and equipment 4.7 ) (8.8 ) — (13.5 )
Prm.mpal receipts from long-term o 103 o L 103
receivables
Proceeds from sale of assets — 137.4 — — 137.4
Other — 1.0 — — 1.0
4.7 ) 1399 — — 135.2
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Cash flows provided by (used in) investing

activities

Financing cash flows:

Revolving credit borrowings 50.0 — — — 50.0
Revolving credit repayments (50.0 ) — — — (50.0
Payment of debt (184.2 ) (8.2 ) — — (192.5
Restricted cash — (8.2 ) — — (8.2
Other 7.4 1.2 — — 8.5
Intercompany transfers 291.1 (291.1 ) — — —
Ca§h. ﬂows provided by (used in) financing 1140 (306.3 )y — o (192.2
activities

Net change 35.1 (24.1 ) 0.2 — 11.1
Beginning cash and equivalents 9.9 50.4 0.4 — 60.7
Ending cash and equivalents $45.0 $26.2 $0.6 $— $71.8

(1) Supplemental condensed statements presented in millions may not foot/crossfoot due to rounding from
Consolidated Statements presented in thousands.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other

factors, which may cause actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied in such statements.

You can identify these forward-looking statements by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,
“estimate,” “intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. You should consider our forward-looking statements in light of

the risks discussed under the heading “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as our
consolidated financial statements, related notes, and the other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report

and our other filings with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The forward-looking statements

contained in this report are made as of the date hereof and the Company assumes no obligation to update or

supplement any forward-looking statements.

You should read the following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes that appear elsewhere in
this report.

Overview

The following discussion and analysis provides information we believe is relevant to an assessment and understanding

of our consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with

the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations contained in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 2012. Except where the context indicates otherwise, the words “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company”
refer to DineEquity, Inc., together with its subsidiaries that are consolidated in accordance with United States

generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”).

Through various subsidiaries we own, franchise and operate two restaurant concepts: Applebee's Neighborhood Grill
& Bar® (“Applebee'®”), in the bar and grill segment of the casual dining category of the restaurant industry, and
International House of Pancakes® (“IHOP”), in the family dining category of the restaurant industry. References herein
to Applebee's and IHOP restaurants are to these two restaurant concepts, whether operated by franchisees, area
licensees or the Company. Over 99% of our restaurants are franchised. We also have 36 company-operated restaurants
primarily to test new remodel programs, operating procedures, products, technology, cooking platforms and service
models.

Domestically, Applebee's restaurants are located in every state except Hawaii, while IHOP restaurants are located in
all 50 states and the District of Columbia. Internationally, Applebee's restaurants are located in one United States
territory and 17 foreign countries; IHOP restaurants are located in two United States territories and seven foreign
countries. With over 3,600 restaurants combined, we believe we are one of the largest full-service restaurant
companies in the world. The June 24, 2013 issue of Nation's Restaurant News reported that IHOP and Applebee's
were the largest restaurants in their respective categories in terms of United States system-wide sales during 2012.
This marks the sixth consecutive year each brand has achieved the number one ranking in that measure.

Capital Allocation Strategy
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On February 26, 2013, our Board of Directors approved a capital allocation strategy that incorporates the return of a
significant portion of our free cash flow to our stockholders. The Board of Directors also approved an authorization to
repurchase up to $100 million of our common stock. Pursuant to that strategy, during the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 we declared and paid three quarterly cash dividends of $0.75 per share of our common stock
totaling $43.2 million. We also repurchased 351,704 shares of our common stock at a total cost of $24.7 million
during this period. As of September 30, 2013 we may repurchase up to an additional $75.3 million of common stock
under the current authorization.
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Key Performance Indicators

In evaluating the performance of each concept, we consider the key performance indicators to be net franchise
restaurant development and the percentage change in domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales. Since we are a 99%
franchised company, expanding the number of franchise restaurants is an important driver of revenue growth. We
currently do not plan to open any new Applebee's or IHOP company-operated restaurants. Revenue from our rental
and financing operations, legacies from the IHOP business model we operated under prior to 2003, is subject to
progressive decline over time as interest-earning balances are repaid. Growth in both the number of franchise
restaurants and sales at those restaurants will drive franchise revenues in the form of higher royalty revenues,
additional franchise fees and, in the case of IHOP restaurants, sales of proprietary pancake and waffle dry mix.

An overview of these performance indicators for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 is as follows:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2013 September 30, 2013

Applebee's THOP Applebee's THOP
S;ic;entage change in domestic system-wide same-restaurant (0.4)% 3.6% 0.1)% 17%
Net franchise restaurant development(!) 2) 9 (24) 21

() Franchise and area license openings, net of closings and refranchisings

IHOP's increase of 3.6% in domestic system-wide restaurant sales for three months ended September 30, 2013 was the
second consecutive quarterly increase in domestic system-wide restaurant sales and the largest increase since the first
quarter of 2008. The increase resulted from a higher average customer check partially offset by a decrease in customer
traffic. Applebee's domestic system-wide restaurant sales for three months ended September 30, 2013 decreased 0.4%
as a decrease in customer traffic was partially offset by an increase in average customer check.

IHOP's increase of 1.7% in domestic system-wide restaurant sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2013
reflects sequential improvement in each of the first three quarters of 2013, with a decrease of 0.5% in the first quarter
of 2013 followed by increases of 1.9% and 3.6% in the second and third quarters, respectively. Applebee's slight
decrease of 0.1% in domestic system-wide restaurant sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 reflects a
decrease of 1.3% in the first quarter followed by an increase of 1.3% in the second quarter and the decrease of 0.4% in
the third quarter.

Applebee's net restaurant development for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was adversely impacted by
restaurant closures during the second quarter of 2013. In April 2013, an Applebee's franchisee that owned and
operated 33 restaurants located in Illinois filed for bankruptcy protection. As a result of those proceedings, 15 of the
restaurants were sold in June 2013 to an affiliate of an existing franchisee and operated without interruption during the
transition of ownership. The remaining 18 restaurants were closed in June 2013 and we received termination fees of
$3.8 million related to the closure of the 18 restaurants during the third quarter of 2013. We have entered into a
development agreement with the new franchisee to open additional restaurants in Illinois in the future.

As of September 30, 2013, Applebee's and IHOP franchisees have opened 10 and 35 new restaurants, respectively. In
2013, we expect Applebee's franchisees to open a total of 25 to 30 new restaurants, the majority of which are expected
to be opened domestically. We have reduced our previous estimate of 40 to 50 new restaurant openings primarily
because for the past few years, franchisees have allocated a significant amount of capital, both human and financial, to
the remodel/revitalization program. We underestimated the time it would take to rebuild the development pipeline. In
addition, several of the franchisee-to-franchisee transfers that were completed in 2013 had development obligations
that were extended as part of the transactions.

In 2013, we expect IHOP franchisees to open a total of 50 to 60 new restaurants, the majority of which are expected to
be opened domestically. Over the past five years, the fourth quarter of each year has been the most active in terms of
new restaurant openings for both brands.

The actual number of openings may differ from both our expectations and development commitments. Historically,
the actual number of restaurants developed in a particular year has been less than the total number committed to be
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developed due to various factors, including economic conditions and franchisee noncompliance with development
agreements. The timing of new restaurant openings also may be affected by various factors including weather-related
and other construction delays, difficulties in obtaining timely regulatory approvals and the impact of currency
fluctuations on our international franchisees.
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Consolidated cash flows from operating activities and consolidated free cash flow for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 were as follows:

Nine Months Ended

September 30,

2013 2012

(In millions)
Consolidated cash flows from operating activities $102.8 $68.1
Consolidated free cash flow $98.6 $51.1
In evaluating the performance of the consolidated enterprise, we consider the key performance indicators to be
consolidated cash flows from operating activities and consolidated free cash flow (cash from operations, plus receipts
from notes, equipment contracts and other long-term receivables, less consolidated capital expenditures, principal
payments on capital leases and financing obligations and the mandatory annual repayment of 1% of the principal
balance of our Term Loans). Consolidated cash from operations and consolidated free cash flow for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013 were $102.8 million and $98.6 million, respectively.
Additional detail on each of our key performance indicators is presented under the captions "Restaurant Development
Activity," "Restaurant Data," and "Liquidity and Capital Resources" that follow.

Restaurant Development Activity

The following table summarizes Applebee’s restaurant development and franchising activity during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited)
Applebee's Restaurant Development Activity
Beginning of period 2,012 2,018 2,034 2,019
New openings:
Franchise 4 5 10 14
Total new openings 4 5 10 14
Closings:
Franchise (6 ) (7 ) (34 ) (17 )
Total closings (6 ) (7 ) (34 ) (17 )
End of period 2,010 2,016 2,010 2,016
Summary - end of period
Franchise 1,987 1,954 1,987 1,954
Company 23 62 23 62
Total 2,010 2,016 2,010 2,016
Restaurant Franchising Activity
Domestic franchise openings 1 4 6 7
International franchise openings 3 1 4 7
Refranchised — 98 — 115
Total restaurants franchised 4 103 10 129
Closings:
Domestic franchise (6 ) 2 ) (31 ) (6 )
International franchise — (5 ) @3 ) (11 )
Total franchise closings (6 ) (7 ) (34 ) (17 )
Net franchise restaurant (reductions) additions (2 ) 96 (24 ) 112
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The following table summarizes IHOP restaurant development and franchising activity during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited)
IHOP Restaurant Development Activity
Beginning of period 1,593 1,557 1,581 1,550
New openings:
Franchise 13 12 31 27
Area license — — 4 1
Total new openings 13 12 35 28
Closings:
Franchise 4 ) 4 ) (13 ) (11
Area license — — (1 ) (2
Total closings 4 ) 4 ) (14 ) (13
End of period 1,602 1,565 1,602 1,565
Summary - end of period
Franchise 1,421 1,383 1,421 1,383
Area license 168 165 168 165
Company 13 17 13 17
Total 1,602 1,565 1,602 1,565
Restaurant Franchising Activity
Domestic franchise openings 10 10 25 24
International franchise openings 3 2 6 3
Area license openings — — 4 1
Refranchised — — 1 4
Total restaurants franchised 13 12 36 32
Closings:
Domestic franchise 4 ) 4 ) (13 ) (11
Area license — — (1 ) 2
Total franchise closings 4 ) 4 ) (14 ) (13
Reacquired by the Company 2 ) — (2 ) (6
Net franchise restaurant additions 7 8 20 13
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The following table sets forth, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the number of
“Effective Restaurants” in the Applebee’s and IHOP systems and information regarding the percentage change in sales at
those restaurants compared to the same periods in the prior year. Sales at restaurants that are owned by franchisees and
area licensees are not attributable to the Company. However, we believe that presentation of this information is useful

in analyzing our revenues because franchisees and area licensees pay us royalties and advertising fees that are

generally based on a percentage of their sales, and, where applicable, rental payments under leases that partially may

be based on a percentage of their sales. Management also uses this information to make decisions about future plans

for the development of additional restaurants as well as evaluation of current operations.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
— September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited)
Applebee's Restaurant Data
Effective Restaurants®@
Franchise 1,986 1,871 1,998 1,861
Company 23 144 23 156
Total 2,009 2,015 2,021 2,017
System-wide®
Sales percentage change(© 0.0 % 2.4 % 0.6 % 1.7 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage 0.4 V% 2.0 % (0.1 V% 1.3 %
change@
Franchise®(©
Sales percentage change(© 6.2 % 8.4 % 1.7 % 7.0 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage 0.4 V% 2.2 % (0.1 V% 1.2 %
change@
Average weekly domestic unit sales (in thousands) $44.9 $45.1 $47.2 $47.4
IHOP Restaurant Data
Effective Restaurants®
Franchise 1,413 1,377 1,410 1,375
Area license 168 165 167 165
Company 12 17 12 15
Total 1,593 1,559 1,589 1,555
System-wide®
Sales percentage change(© 6.1 % 0.9 % 4.2 % 1.9 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change@ 3.6 % (2.0 V% 1.7 % (1.3 )%
Franchise®
Sales percentage change(© 6.2 % 0.4 % 4.3 % 1.6 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change® 3.6 % (2.0 V% 1.7 % (1.2 )%
Average weekly domestic unit sales (in thousands) $35.0 $33.8 $34.8 $34.2

Area License ®
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(a) “Effective Restaurants” are the weighted average number of restaurants open in a given fiscal period, adjusted to
account for restaurants open for only a portion of the period. Information is presented for all Effective Restaurants in
the Applebee’s and IHOP systems, which includes restaurants owned by the Company as well as those owned by
franchisees and area licensees.

(b) “System-wide sales” are retail sales at Applebee’s restaurants operated by franchisees and IHOP restaurants
operated by franchisees and area licensees, as reported to the Company, in addition to retail sales at company-operated
restaurants. Sales at restaurants that are owned by franchisees and area licensees are not attributable to the Company.
Unaudited reported sales for Applebee's domestic franchise restaurants, IHOP franchise restaurants and IHOP area
license restaurants for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

(In millions)
Reported sales (unaudited)

Applebee's franchise restaurant sales $1,073.7 $1,011.4 $3,409.4 $3,165.4
IHOP franchise restaurant sales $642.6 $604.8 $1,912.7 $1,834.6
IHOP area license restaurant sales $61.8 $57.3 $188.0 $178.1

(c) “Sales percentage change” reflects, for each category of restaurants, the percentage change in sales in any given
fiscal period compared to the prior fiscal period for all restaurants in that category.

(d) “Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change” reflects the percentage change in sales in any given fiscal
period, compared to the same weeks in the prior year, for domestic restaurants that have been operated throughout
both fiscal periods that are being compared and have been open for at least 18 months. Because of new unit openings
and restaurant closures, the domestic restaurants open throughout both fiscal periods being compared may be different
from period to period. Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change does not include data on IHOP area license
restaurants.

(e) The sales percentage change for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 for Applebee’s
franchise restaurants was impacted by the refranchising of 154 company-operated restaurants during 2012.
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Significant Known Events, Trends or Uncertainties Impacting or Expected to Impact Comparisons of Reported or
Future Results

Same-restaurant Sales Trends

Applebee’s domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales decreased 0.4% for the three months ended September 30,
2013 from the same period in 2012. For the first nine months of 2013, Applebee’s domestic system-wide
same-restaurant sales decreased 0.1% from the same period in 2012. For both comparative periods, a decline in
customer traffic was partially offset by an increase in average customer check. Same-restaurant sales performance for
the first nine months of 2013 is not necessarily indicative of results expected for the full year.

IHOP’s domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales increased 3.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2013
from the same period in 2012, the second consecutive quarterly increase and the largest increase since the first quarter
of 2008. For the first nine months of 2013, IHOP's domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales increased 1.7%
compared to 2012. For both comparative periods, the improvement resulted from a higher average customer check
substantially larger than a decrease in customer traffic. We believe the increase in average customer check was due in
part to the new IHOP menu launched in June 2013 which influenced customers’ purchasing patterns and resulted in a
favorable shift in product mix. Additionally, we believe the average customer check had declined in 2012 because of
strong consumer interest in promotional menu items, resulting in a lower base for comparison. Same-restaurant sales
performance for the first nine months of 2013 is not necessarily indicative of results expected for the full year.
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Published measures of national consumer confidence declined in the third quarter of 2013, an indication that economic
uncertainty continues to impact consumers' decisions with respect to discretionary spending in general as well as with
respect to dining out. Revenues from the restaurant industry as a whole decreased in the third quarter of 2013
compared to the second quarter of 2013. However, the industry segments in which we operate moved in opposite
directions. Revenues in the casual dining segment decreased during the third quarter of 2013 compared to the second
quarter, while revenues from the family dining segment increased during the third quarter of 2013 compared to the
second quarter. Both Applebee's and IHOP outperformed the averages of their respective categories based on
domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales.

We work to drive consistent and sustainable same-restaurant sales and traffic and differentiate our brands by focusing
on menu innovation, operational excellence, advertising and media, and our value proposition. The new ITHOP menu
launched in June 2013 had three objectives: (i) simplify the ordering process with a new menu layout; (ii) reduce the
overall number of menu items over time to lessen complexity; and (iii) introduce new and exciting menu offerings and
categories. Applebee's menu is continually updated through the offering of new culinary creations, such as “Honey
Pepper Sirloin” and “Honey Pepper Chicken & Shrimp” as part of our signature “2 for $20” offering.

We continue to optimize our media strategy to increase both reach and frequency to break through the very
competitive media landscape and more effectively connect with target customers of both IHOP and Applebee's. For
example, in September 2013 we launched a joint venture with ESPN®, the worldwide leader in sports coverage, to
debut “ESPN Fan Zone” at Applebee’s restaurants across the country. The partnership creates a new environment for
guests to enjoy their favorite teams and the wide selection on our menu. As part of the game-watching experience,
guests also can choose items from a new “Game Time Menu.” In addition to our focus on traditional media such as TV
and radio, we continued our expansion into digital and social media, additional vehicles through which we connect
with our customers.

The Applebee's remodel program also has been a key component of our strategy to drive same-restaurant sales and
traffic and we believe has revitalized and helped to differentiate the brand. During the third quarter of 2013,
franchisees remodeled over 80 restaurants; approximately two-thirds of the domestic Applebee's system has been
remodeled since the program was initiated in the second half of 2010.

Franchisee Matters
From time to time, our franchisees may experience financial difficulties, including bankruptcy.

In February 2013, an IHOP franchisee and its affiliated entities which owned and operated 19 restaurants located in
the states of Illinois, Wisconsin and Missouri filed for bankruptcy protection. As a result of an order issued by the
bankruptcy court, two of the 19 restaurants were returned to us in the third quarter of 2013. A non-cash charge of $0.5
million was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income against deferred rental revenue
associated with the leases for those two restaurants. During the third quarter of 2013, we received favorable rulings
from the bankruptcy court which, if upheld, would allow us to transfer the remaining 17 restaurants to another
franchisee. These rulings have been appealed by the current franchisee and are presently subject to a stay, pursuant to
which the current franchisee is operating these restaurants only on a day-to-day basis and is continuing to make
payments to us pursuant to the terms of the original franchise agreements. Accordingly, we are unable to determine
the ultimate outcome of the bankruptcy proceedings at this time.

In an unrelated matter, in April 2013, an Applebee's franchisee which owned and operated 33 restaurants located in

[linois filed for bankruptcy protection. Pursuant to the bidding procedures approved by the bankruptcy court, 15 of
the restaurants were sold in June 2013 to an affiliate of an existing franchisee and operated without interruption during
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the transition of ownership. The remaining 18 restaurants were closed in June 2013. We received approximately $3.8
million in termination payments and other fees in connection with the closure of these restaurants. We also have
entered into a development agreement with the franchisee that acquired the 15 restaurants to open additional
restaurants in Illinois in the future.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Comparison of Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

SUMMARY
Three Months Ended  Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable)  September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions, except percentages)
Revenue $161.3 $216.3 $(5.0 ) $482.6 $691.3 $ (208.7 )
Segment profit 93.0 96.4 3.4 ) 278.5 303.2 24.7 )
Segment profit as % of revenue 57.7 % 44.6 % 13.1 %  57.7 % 43.9 % 13.8 %
General & administrative expenses 35.3 48.7 13.4 105.0 125.6 20.6
Interest expense 25.0 28.9 39 75.2 88.8 13.5
Gain on disposition of assets (0.1 ) (73.7 ) (73.6 ) (0.3 ) (89.6 ) (89.3 )
Other expenses 2.7 5.8 3.1 11.3 15.4 4.1
Income tax provision 114 26.0 14.6 334 54.2 20.9
Effective tax rate 37.8 % 30.1 % (7.7 Y%  38.2 % 33.2 % (5.0 )%
Net income $18.7 $60.6 $41.8 ) $53.9 $108.9 $(549 )

The completion of our transition to a 99% franchised company in October 2012 had a significant impact on the
comparison of our results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 with the same
periods of the prior year. The most significant impact was the decline in revenues and segment profit because of the
Applebee's company-operated restaurants that were refranchised, partially offset by increased royalty revenues and
franchise fees from the refranchised restaurants. Interest expense declined, in large part, due to repayment of debt with
proceeds from the sale of assets of company-operated restaurants that were refranchised. Additionally, our effective
tax rate for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was impacted by a discrete $6.3 million tax benefit
related to a reduction in state deferred taxes as a result of the refranchising of Applebee's company-operated
restaurants.

A significant portion of the decline in general and administrative (“G&A”) expenses for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2013 was due to a $9.0 million charge recorded in the third quarter of 2012 related to settlement
of litigation that commenced prior to our acquisition of Applebee's. The elimination and realignment of administrative
functions associated with company-operated restaurants as well as our staff reduction initiative implemented in the
third quarter of 2012 was primarily responsible for the remaining decreases in G&A expenses for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2013, as compared with the same periods of 2012.

REVENUE
Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended  Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable)  September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions)
Franchise $111.7 $102.6 $9.1 $331.6 $313.5 $ 18.1
Company 154 79.6 (64.2 ) 48.1 274.3 (226.2 )
Rental 31.0 30.9 0.1 92.7 92.1 0.6
Financing 3.2 3.2 0.0 10.2 11.4 (1.2 )
Total revenue $161.3 $216.3 $ (550 ) $482.6  $691.3 $ (208.7 )
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Total revenue decreased $55.0 million and $208.7 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013. The decrease in each comparative period was primarily due to the refranchising of Applebee's
company-operated restaurants in 2012, partially offset by higher franchise royalty revenues resulting from the increase
in the number of Applebee’s and IHOP franchise restaurants. More than two-thirds of our revenue now comes from our
franchise segment. As franchisees develop more restaurants, the company restaurant segment should consistently
generate less than 10% of our revenues.
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SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS)
Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions)
Franchise operations $83.3 $75.5 $7.8 $248.8 $232.4 $16.4
Company restaurant operations (0.3 ) 11.0 (11.3 ) (0.1 ) 42.0 (42.1 )
Rental operations 6.8 6.7 0.1 19.8 19.0 0.8
Financing operations 3.2 32 0.0 10.0 9.8 0.2
Total $93.0 $96.4 $(34 ) $278.5 $303.2 $(24.7 )

The decline in segment profit for the three months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the prior year was
primarily due to the impact of the refranchising of Applebee’s company-operated restaurants on the company
restaurant segment. This was partially offset by an increase in the number of Applebee’s and IHOP franchise
restaurants, a $4.0 million increase in termination fees related to the closure of Applebee's restaurants and a 3.6%
increase in IHOP domestic same-restaurant sales.

The decline in segment profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the prior year was primarily
due to the impact of the refranchising of Applebee’s company-operated restaurants on the company restaurant segment,
partially offset by an increase in the number of Applebee’s and IHOP franchise restaurants, a $4.8 million increase in
termination fees related to closure of Applebee's restaurants and a 1.7% increase in IHOP domestic same-restaurant
sales. Nearly 90% of our segment profit now comes from our franchise operations. We operate our company
restaurants primarily to test new remodel programs, operating procedures, products, technology, cooking platforms

and service models and, accordingly, we do not anticipate these restaurants will generate a significant amount of
segment profit or loss in the foreseeable future.

Franchise Operations

Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance

(In millions, except number of restaurants)
Effective Franchise
Restaurants: ()

Applebee’s 1,986 1,871 115 1,998 1,861 137

IHOP 1,581 1,542 39 1,577 1,540 37
Franchise Revenues:

Applebee’s $50.9 $43.7 $7.2 $151.9 $137.5 $144
IHOP 40.8 39.9 0.9 120.1 118.4 1.7

IHOP advertising 20.0 19.0 1.0 59.6 57.6 2.0

Total franchise revenues 111.7 102.6 9.1 331.6 313.5 18.1
Franchise Expenses:

Applebee’s 1.6 1.1 (0.5 ) 4.6 3.1 (1.5 )
IHOP 6.8 7.0 0.2 18.6 20.4 1.8

IHOP advertising 20.0 19.0 (1.0 ) 59.6 57.6 2.0 )
Total franchise expenses 28.4 27.1 (1.3 ) 82.8 81.1 (1.7 )
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Franchise Segment Profit:

Applebee’s 49.3 42.6 6.7 147.3 134.4 12.9
IHOP 34.0 329 1.1 101.5 98.0 35
Total franchise segment profit $83.3 $75.5 $7.8 $248.8 $232.4 $16.4
Segment profit as % of revenue

@ 74.6 % 73.6 % 75.1 % 74.1 %

() Effective Franchise Restaurants are the weighted average number of franchise restaurants open in a given fiscal
period, adjusted to account for franchise restaurants open for only a portion of the period.
(@) Percentages calculated on actual amounts, not rounded amounts presented above.
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The $7.2 million increase in Applebee’s franchise revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was
primarily attributable to a $4.0 million increase in termination fees in addition to increased royalty revenue resulting
from the refranchising of 154 company-operated restaurants in 2012 (17 in the first quarter, 98 in the third quarter and
39 in the fourth quarter), partially offset by a 0.4% decrease in domestic same-restaurant sales. The $14.4 million
increase in Applebee’s franchise revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily attributable to
increased royalty revenue resulting from the refranchising of 154 company-operated restaurants in 2012 and a $4.8
million increase in termination fees. Termination fees, by nature, are unpredictable and variable. The increase in
termination fees for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to the closure of 18
Applebee's restaurants as discussed under "Significant Known Events, Trends or Uncertainties Impacting or Expected
to Impact Comparisons of Reported or Future Results - Franchisee Matters" above.

The $0.9 million increase in IHOP franchise revenue (other than advertising) for the three months ended September
30, 2013 was due to higher royalty revenues resulting from a 2.6% increase in Effective Franchise Restaurants due to
new restaurant development and a 3.6% increase in domestic same-restaurant sales, partially offset by a decrease in
sales volumes of pancake and waffle dry mix. The $1.7 million increase in IHOP franchise revenue (other than
advertising) for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was due to higher royalty revenues resulting from a 2.5%
increase in Effective Franchise Restaurants and a 1.7% increase in domestic same-restaurant sales, partially offset by a
decrease in sales volumes of pancake and waffle dry mix. The decreases in IHOP franchise expenses (other than
advertising) for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were primarily due to lower purchase
volumes of pancake and waffle dry mix, partially offset by higher bad debt expense.

IHOP’s franchise expenses are substantially higher than Applebee’s due to advertising expenses. Franchise fees
designated for IHOP’s national advertising fund and local marketing and advertising cooperatives are recognized as
revenue and expense of franchise operations. However, Applebee’s national advertising fund activity constitutes an
agency transaction and therefore is not recognized as franchise revenue and expense. The increases in IHOP
advertising revenue and expense for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were primarily due to
the increases in Effective Franchise Restaurants and the increases in domestic franchise same-restaurant sales that also
impacted IHOP franchise revenue as noted above.

The $7.8 million increase in franchise segment profit for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily
due to an increase in Applebee's Effective Franchise Restaurants due to the refranchising of company-operated
restaurants, an increase in IHOP's Effective Franchise Restaurants due to new restaurant development and a 3.6%
increase in IHOP domestic same-restaurant sales. The $16.4 million increase in franchise segment profit for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to an increase in Applebee's Effective Franchise Restaurants due
to the refranchising of company-operated restaurants, and an increase in IHOP's Effective Franchise Restaurants due
to new restaurant development.

Company Restaurant Operations

Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance

(In millions, except number of restaurants)
Effective Company
Restaurants:(D

Applebee’s 23 144 (121 ) 23 156 (133 )
IHOP 12 17 5 ) 12 15 3 )
Company restaurant sales $15.4 $79.6 $(64.2 ) $48.1 $274.3 $(2262 )
Company restaurant expenses 15.7 68.6 52.9 48.2 232.3 184.1

87



Edgar Filing: BLUEFLY INC - Form S-3

Company restaurant segment

profit $(0.3 ) $11.0 $(11.3 ) $(0.1 ) $42.0 $42.1 )
Segment profit as % of revenue
@ (1.8 )% 13.9 % 0.5 % 15.3 %

() Effective Company Restaurants are the weighted average number of company restaurants open in a given fiscal
period, adjusted to account for company restaurants open for only a portion of the period.
(@) Percentages calculated on actual amounts, not rounded amounts presented above.

As of September 30, 2013, company restaurant operations comprised 23 Applebee’s company-operated restaurants and
10 IHOP company-operated restaurants. We operate these restaurants primarily to test new remodel programs,
operating procedures, products, technology, cooking platforms and service models. Additionally, from time to time we
may also operate restaurants reacquired from IHOP franchisees on a temporary basis until the restaurants are
refranchised. Applebee's Effective Company Restaurants for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012
include the 154 restaurants, refranchised as noted under "Franchise Operations" above, for the period of time they
were operated as company restaurants.
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Consolidated company restaurant sales and expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 decreased $64.2
million and $52.9 million, respectively, of which $62.9 million and $52.3 million, respectively, were due to the
refranchising of 154 Applebee's company-operated restaurants in 2012. Consolidated company restaurant sales and
expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 decreased $226.2 million and $184.1 million, respectively, of
which $223.7 million and $183.9 million, respectively, were due to the refranchising of 154 Applebee's
company-operated restaurants in 2012.

The decreases in company restaurant segment profit for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were
primarily due to the refranchising of the 154 Applebee's company-operated restaurants in 2012.

Rental Operations

Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions)

Rental revenues $31.0 $30.9 $0.1 $92.7 $92.1 $0.6

Rental expenses 242 24.2 0.0 72.9 73.1 0.2

Rental operations segment profit $6.8 $6.7 $0.1 $19.8 $19.0 $0.8

Segment profit as % of revenue

@ 22.1 % 21.6 % 21.3 % 20.7 %

(1) Percentages calculated on actual amounts, not rounded amounts presented above

Rental operations relate primarily to IHOP franchise restaurants. Rental income includes revenue from operating
leases and interest income from direct financing leases. Rental expenses are costs of prime operating leases and
interest expense on prime capital leases on certain franchise restaurants.

Rental revenue, expenses and segment profit for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were consistent with the
same periods of 2012. Rental revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 increased due to the lower
write-off of deferred lease revenue associated with franchise restaurants whose lease agreements were prematurely
terminated, as compared to the same period of 2012. The rental revenue increase was partially offset by a decline in
interest income as direct financing leases are repaid. The increase in rental segment profit during the nine months
ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to the lower write-off of deferred lease revenue associated with
franchise restaurants whose lease agreements were prematurely terminated.

Financing Operations

Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions)

Financing revenues $3.2 $3.2 $0.0 $10.2 $11.4 $(1.2 )

Financing expenses — 0.0 0.0 0.2 1.6 1.4

Finapcing operations segment $3.2 $3.2 $0.0 $10.0 $9.8 $02

profit

Segment profit as % of revenue

@ 100.0 % 99.5 % 97.6 % 86.1 %
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(1) Percentages calculated on actual amounts, not rounded amounts presented above

All financing operations relate to IHOP franchise restaurants. Financing operations revenue primarily consists of
interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases, as well as sales of equipment associated
with refranchised IHOP restaurants and a portion of franchise fees for restaurants taken back from franchisees not
allocated to IHOP intellectual property. Financing expenses are primarily the cost of restaurant equipment associated
with refranchised IHOP restaurants.

Financing revenue, expenses and segment profit for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were consistent with
the same period of the prior year. The decrease in financing revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013
was due to a decrease in interest revenue resulting from the progressive decline in note balances due to repayments
and less refranchising activity related to IHOP restaurants reacquired from franchisees. The decrease in financing
expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was due to less refranchising activity related to [HOP
restaurants reacquired from franchisees. Segment profit nine months ended September 30, 2013 was slightly higher as
the decline in interest revenue was offset by lower losses on IHOP refranchising activity.
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OTHER EXPENSE AND INCOME ITEMS

Three Months Ended Favorable Nine Months Ended Favorable

September 30, (Unfavorable) September 30, (Unfavorable)
2013 2012 Variance 2013 2012 Variance
(In millions)
General and administrative $35.3 $48.7 $13.4 $105.0  $1256  $20.6
expenses
Interest expense 25.0 28.9 39 75.2 88.8 13.5
Amortization of intangible assets 3.1 3.1 0.0 9.2 9.2 0.0
Closure and impairment charges (0.4 ) 04 0.8 0.8 1.3 0.5
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 2.3 2.3 0.0 4.9 4.9
Debt modification costs — — — 1.3 — (1.3 )
Gain on disposition of assets 0.1 ) (73.7 ) (73.6 ) (0.3 ) (89.6 ) (89.3 )
Provision for income taxes 114 26.0 14.6 334 54.2 20.9

General and Administrative Expenses

The decrease in G&A expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period of the
prior year was primarily due to a $9.0 million charge recorded in the third quarter of 2012 related to settlement of
litigation that commenced prior to our acquisition of Applebee's. In addition, compensation costs were lower by
approximately $4.4 million, primarily due to: (i) lower severance costs, (ii) lower stock-based compensation costs and
(iii) lower salaries and benefits resulting from the restructuring initiatives announced in the third quarter of 2012 and
from the refranchising of Applebee's company-operated restaurants. The declines in these components of
compensation costs were partially offset by increased bonus costs.

The decrease in G&A expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period of the
prior year was primarily due to compensation costs that were lower by approximately $12.1 million and to a $9.0
million charge recorded in the third quarter of 2012 related to settlement of litigation that commenced prior to our
acquisition of Applebee's. The decline in compensation costs was primarily due to: (i) lower salaries and benefits
resulting from the restructuring initiatives announced in the third quarter of 2012 and from the refranchising of
Applebee's company-operated restaurants; (ii) lower stock-based compensation costs and (iii) lower severance costs,
partially offset by higher bonus expenses. The lower aggregate compensation costs were partially offset by higher
costs for professional services and consumer research.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 decreased by $3.9 million compared to the same
period of the prior year due to a reduction of outstanding debt balances. Average interest-bearing debt outstanding
(our Term Loans,
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Senior Notes and financing obligations) during the three months ended September 30, 2013 was approximately $210
million lower than the same period of the prior year.

Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 decreased by $13.5 million compared to the same
period of the prior year primarily due to a reduction of outstanding debt balances. Average interest-bearing debt
outstanding (our Term Loans, Senior Notes and financing obligations) during the nine months ended September 30,
2013 was approximately $245 million lower than the same period of the prior year. Additionally, the variable interest
rate on our Term Loans declined 50 basis points from 4.25% to 3.75% as a result of a debt modification in February
2013 (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources - February 2013 Amendment to Credit Agreement”) and the stability in
LIBOR interest rates since February 2013.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized the following loss on
extinguishment of debt:

Face Amount

Quarter Ended Instrument Repaid/Retired Repaid/Retire dCash Paid Loss ()
(In millions)
March 2013 Term Loans $1.2 $1.2 $0.0
June 2013 Term Loans 1.2 1.2 0.0
Total 2013 $2.4 $2.4 $0.0
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